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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BETRE

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

E5E : +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Citychamp Watch & Jewellery
Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out
on pages 186 to 353, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment on goodwill and intangible assets

Refer to notes 33 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant accounting policies in notes 4.6 and 4.12 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had goodwill and intangible assets with carrying
amounts of HK$1,071,552,000 and HK$53,310,000 respectively arising from the
acquisitions of bank, financial and watch businesses.

Management will perform impairment assessment on the amount of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually, and will perform impairment
assessment when there is an indication that an intangible asset with definite useful lives
may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, management assessed the
recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. These assets were allocated to cash generating units (“CGU"), and the
recoverable amount of each CGU was determined by management based on either value-
in-use calculations using cash flow projections or fair value less cost of disposal.

The impairment test involves significant judgements and assumptions by the
management underly the value-in-use calculation and the determination of fair value less
cost of disposal.

Management concluded that, based on the impairment assessment, no impairment
losses would be recognised for the year.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our procedures on the management's impairment assessment on goodwill and intangible
assets included:

(i) Assessing the reasonableness of market data, discount rates and growth rates
applied in determining the recoverable amount;

(i)  Reviewing the reasonableness of other key assumption based on our knowledge of
the business and industry; and

(iii) Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved budgets and
considering the reasonableness of these budgets.

Revenue recognition relating to sales of goods

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements and the significant
accounting policies in note 4.19 to the consolidated financial statements

A substantial portion of the Group's revenue was derived from sales of watches and
timepieces.

For sales of watches and timepieces, the amount of revenue recognised during the year
is dependent on a point in time the control of the goods transfers from the Group to the
customers.

We identified the recognition of revenue relating to sales of goods as key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group and there is a
significant inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by the management to meet
specific targets or expectations.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our procedures on the revenue recognition relating to sales of goods included:

(i) Assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised properly by inspecting the transactions selected
with relevant underlying documentations;

(i) assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales transactions before and after the
financial year end had been recognised in the appropriate period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying documentations; and

(iii)  reviewing if there are any significant adjustments to revenue during the reporting
period, understanding the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying documentations.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities in the
regard.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin
Practising Certificate Number P06162
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ=ZE—-NF+-A=+—-HLFE

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited T3 iEX AT £ B AR Q7

Notes

k=3

2018
—B-N\F

HK$'000
FERT

Interest income from banking business RITHER 2 FEHRA 221,648 120,604
Interest expenses from banking business RITEB 2N ERAXZ (40,817) (25,612)
Net interest income from banking business RITEB 2R E WA FEHE 7a 180,831 94,992
Service fees and commission income from RITER 2 RBE KA KA
banking business 325,614 307,041
Service fees and commission expenses from RITEBRBERAEAX
banking business (89,253) (94,425)
Net service fees and commission income RITEBZRBERFAS WA
from banking business FE 7b 236,361 212,616
Trading income from banking business RITEB 2R HIMA 7c 63,172 65,227
Service fees and commission income from PREB R E RASKA
financial business 7d 3,342 9,307
Interest income from financial business SRR 2 FEHRA 7d 193 128
Sales of goods from non-banking and financial FRITREMEB  ERHEE
businesses WA 7e 2,444,364 2,583,495
Rental income from non-banking and financial FERITREMEBK 2B WA
businesses 7e 9,586 16,936
Total revenue A 2,937,849 2,982,701
Cost of sales from non-banking and financial FERITRBBER 2 HEKAR
businesses (1,022,568) (1,226,494)
Other income and other net gains or losses A K2 B Y e Sk BT R ER 8 79,486 1,300,392
Selling and distribution expenses HEMDHER (849,551) (800,923)
Administrative expenses THRER (737,985) (774,011)
Share of loss of joint ventures BEEETEEE 27 (2,678) (1,159)
Share of profit of associates FEAL B N RDE 28 8,387 20,711
Finance costs from non-banking business JERITER 2 B T5E A 9 (65,828) (68,453)
Profit before income tax BR P 15 Bt A2 A 10 347,112 1,432,764
Income tax expense Frsfif X 11 (105,664) (221,566)
Profit for the year A FEEF 241,448 1,211,198
Other comprehensive income Hig 2 E KA
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to TERBRBREH AR @A
profit or loss BB 2IERB
— Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligations —EFFTEEREEMNETFER 15.2 33,025 15,186
— Change in fair value of financial assets at —BAFEFARGEZEBAZ
fair value through other comprehensive income TREERATEES 20 (123,352) -
— Revaluation gain upon transfer of owner occupied - HER T REFEREERE
land and buildings to investment properties YR 2 B 57,128 -
— Deferred tax arising from transfer of owner occupied  — ¥ BE Rt NIEFERES
land and buildings to investment properties WEYEEE ZBELERIE (22,212) -
(55,411) 15,186
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to AlgE RN B EN DR E Ik
profit or loss EE 2B
— Exchange differences on translation to —HMERIEE IERER
presentation currency (162,086) 233,906

— A HEH B A B R SME
RHEEa M EE 12 = (2,809)
—JE(REtE N RIEN =5

— Release of exchange reserve to profit or loss
upon disposal of subsidiaries
— Share of exchange differences on translation

of associates 28 (117) 96
— Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial -t EeREELTE
assets B 24 - (5,041)
(162,203) 226,152
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEFEHMEZEKA (217,614) 241,338
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEEE2HEBAERE 23,834 1,452,536
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Profit for the year attributable to: BUTATRBEERFERF :
Owners of the Company PAN/NSIEZ SN 201,372 1,170,484
Non-controlling interests FEEAR A 40,076 40,714
241,448 1,211,198
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEERFEEZEBA
attributable to: B
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZZSN (9,083) 1,395,850
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR A 32,917 56,686
23,834 1,452,536
Earnings per share attributable to owners AAREBABEESREF
of the Company 14
— Basic — 2R HK4.63 cents Al HK26.91 cents 7 Ll
— Diluted — 88 HK4.63 cents ALl HK26.87 cents & Ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RE WA R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE—N\FE+=A=+—-H

2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T

Assets EE
Cash and deposits Re MFR 17 7,701,743 7,420,678
Due from clients FEU = P 5RIE 18 1,575,438 1,011,516
Due from banks FE YR 1T FRIE 18 3,387,836 5,921,878
Trading portfolio investments RHGBEEEE 19 123,606 641,031

Financial assets at fair value through other RAFEFAHEMEEKAZ

comprehensive income TEEE 20 627,200 -
Derivative financial assets MESBEE 21 7,694 4,680
Trade receivables JRE U5 BR X 22 571,424 506,287
Other financial assets at amortised cost WEHEA AT R EMSREE 23 1,034,773 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHEEmEE 24 - 488,368
Held-to-maturity investments FEREERE 25 = 1,138,704
Inventories BE 26 2,314,545 2,027,191
Income tax recoverable AT YL Fr SR 13,269 10,133
Interests in joint ventures Frih& &b ¥En 27 2,439 5,117
Interests in associates PGB & A m) 28 102,919 99,648
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 29 1,036,736 1,027,303
Investment properties EYE 30 179,133 125,384
Prepaid land lease payments TS T E I 31 47,605 51,083
Intangible assets mEAE 32 53,310 13,136
Gooduwill BES 33 1,071,552 906,036
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEEE 42 9,437 6,900
Other assets Hin & E 34 397,570 450,598
Total assets mEE 20,258,229 21,855,671

Liabilities afE
Due to banks FEATER1TFRIE 4,181 3,042
Due to clients eI P 5RIE 35 12,504,591 14,270,089
Derivative financial liabilities TTHEEBARE 21 20,866 35,656
Trade payables FEAST BR 3R 36 324,106 305,798
Contract liabilities AEHEE 37 30,918 -
Corporate bonds YNSEEE 38 760,244 732,978
Income tax payables FET PSR 73,867 101,985
Borrowings 0= 39 1,047,189 583,269
Provisions B 40 476 721
Subordinated debt IXBIETE a4 - 95,674
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 42 60,369 8,188
Due to a shareholder B — 2R 2B 50 73,000 -
Other liabilities HitwBE 43 548,931 570,145
Total liabilities wEeE 15,448,738 16,707,545
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2018 2017
—E-N\F ZET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Equity &
Equity attributable to owners ARAGEEAEMLES
of the Company

Share capital &% A 44 435,189 435,032
Reserves & 46 4,004,602 4,369,849
4,439,791 4,804,881
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE = 369,700 343,245
Total equity R 4,809,491 5,148,126
Total liabilities and equity EEREREE 20,258,229 21,855,671

The consolidated financial statements on pages 186 to 353 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Hon Kwok Lung
RERE
Director

Ex

F186EIVALBARBARA —F—NF= 7
—HABEEERIEREETE WAL TE
ERREE

Shang Jianguang
k%
Director

EF
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BREZREEEARA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

N—F

f“‘(ﬁ%gwg%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZZ=

Share
capital

g
HKS'000

(note 44)
(Pt a4)

Share
premium
account*

)

HEE

HKS$'000
Ti

(note 46)
(Hrit46)

HKS'000
TEL
(note 46)

—NF+ZA=1+-RLFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Eff
Investment
revaluation
reserve*

Other ~arisingon
reseve”  consolidation*

Exchange
reserve*

Statutory
reserve*

£t
HKS'000
AT
(note 46) (note 46)
(i (FizE46)

HKS'000

(note 46)

Retained
profits*

Total

HKS'000

Non-
controlling
interests

HKS$'000

HK$ 000

Balance at 1 January 2017 T-tF-A-R2K8 434,68 113,149 1,601 2,69 (15,300) 60,148 (24781 1051 2419923 3,632,881 219809 3,852,690
Transactions with owners BEAAR E
Proceeds from shares issued under REDRROEH RS

share option scheme i 350 188 - - - - - - - 1138 - 1138
Exercise of share options ! - 531 (531) - - - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries =HBAR 7 - - - - - - - - - - 0,145 0145
Partial deemed disposal of interest in subsidiaries A

without loss of control =h - - - (2,935 - - - - - (2,939) 3183 30,808
Acquisition of non-controlling interests R - - - (4537) - - - - - (4537) (11,556) (16,093)
2016 special dividend (note 13.1) - (3,866) - - - - - - (213,650) (217516) - 217516)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (17,630) (17,630)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 40,088 40,088
Total transactions with owners HREBEARZHAE 350 (2.547) (531) (1472) - - - - (213,650) (223,850) 66,750 (157,100)
Comprehensive income 2EUA
Profit for the year REERET - - - - - - - - 1170484 1170484 40,4 1211198
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - - - - - - - 16,162 16,162 (976) 15,186
Exchange differences on translation

to presentation currency - - . N - - 216,965 N N 216,965 16,941 233906
Release of exchange reserve to profit

or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - (2.809) - - (2,809 - (2809
Share of exchange differences on translation of associates FE {E%: & - - - - - - % - - % - %
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets "1t & £ 7 § F VA - - - - - - - (5,048) - (5,048) 1 (5,041)
Total comprehensive income for the year EEERARAAR - - - - - - 2425 (5048) 1186646 1395850 5668 145253
Appropriation to statutory reserve BRZEEEE - - - - - 31,045 - - (31,049) - - -
Release of statutory reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries £ M B A AR ER BlE - - - - - (113) - - 115 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZS-tE+-B=+-Az&H 435,032 202 1,070 15220 (15,300) 91,078 (32,935 117,505 3,421,989 4,804,881 343,245 5148126
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Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KATRAARIERR

Far value Revaluation

through other resenve for
Share Share Goodwil Investment  comprehensive property, Non-
premium option Other arising on Statutory Eichange revaluation income plant and Retained controling
accountt reservet reservet  consolidation* reservet Teservet reserve* reserve!*  equipment profts* Total interests

BAVE

ARk 9% ER

Rt RERHE #okA REE( 2E4A RRE
& EER B RMEE  EEZER MREE HERE: ik BEY EfRE REER" gt FaRER EEEE
HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 KS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Tin TEn TEn Thn TR TR TER TER TEn Tin TEn TEn TEn TR

(note 44) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46) (note 46)

(Wita) (Kites) (Kites) (Kitee) (Kitee) (Kitte) (Kite) (Kitt) (Kitds) (Hites)

Balance at 31 December 2017 R R
and 1 January 2018 1 350 mm 1070 15,20 (15300) 91,078 (3293) 11515 - - 3401989 4804881 335 5,148,126
mpact on ntel aplicaton of HKFRS 9

(note ) - - - - - - - (117525) 25053 - (141,491 (8480) (158) (9:38)
At January 2018, asrstated RZE-) 3503 ma 1070 15,20 (15,300 9,078 (32.99) - 25053 - 3280498 4796401 w8 5,138,888
Transactions with owners
Proceeds fom haresisued under sare

apton scheme 19 35 - - - - - - - - - 511 - 511
rercise ofshare ptions - 3 (39 - - - - - - - - - - -
Lapse ofshae option - - 831 - - - - - - - 1 - - -
Arsing rom acquistion of subsdiares

(note51.1) - - - - - - - - - - - - 13913 13913
Farly redempton o cnvertble bonds = = = 808 = = = = = = = 808 = 808
Deemed acquiston of nterestin

subsidaries note 520 - - - (87.200) - - - - - - - (87.20) (68,875) (156,077)
Acquiston of non<ontroling nteests

(note 526) - - - (331) - - - - - - - (331) (2205) (2756)
2017 firal didend (note 13) - (89,767) - - - - - - - - (171,346) (261,113) - (261,113)
Dividends pid o non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (56,536) (56,536)
Netinvestment by non-contrling interests 72 a3 - - - - - - - - - - - - (2041) (204)
Totaltransactions with owners EREARAHE 157 (89,174) (1,00) (86.925) - - - - - - (170,515) (3475 (5,104) (35331)
Comprehensive income 2E4A
Poftforthe ear FERER = - - - - - - - - - 0130 130 40,076 U148

Othercomprehensive income Ah2EHA

Remeastrementofdefnd benefit
tbigaions

Change infair value offnancal assets at
frvaluethrough thercomprehense
income - - - - - - - - (12335) - - (123352) - (13.350)

Revaluation gain upon transferof owner
accupied and and buldings to Vi
investment propertie - - - - - - - - - 51128 - 51128 = 18

Deferd tan arsingfrom transferof
owner occuped and and buldingsto

= = = = = = = = = = 318 318 1141 305

investments roperties - - - - - - - - - ) - o) - @)
xchange difrences on ranlaton o FEE B 2R

presentaion cuency - - - - - - (193,180 - - - - (153,180) (8,906) (162,086)
Share of exchange dferences on 4

translation of assocates - - - - - - (1) - - - - (1) - (1)
Tota comprehensiveincome KEE2ENAEE

forthe year - - - - - - (13.297) - (1335) 34916 BL650 9,083) R B
Appropriaton tostatutory reserve - - - - - 12184 - - - - (12,184 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 HZB-NEtZAZt-A2

&8 435189 682,028 - (71,105) (15,300) 103,262 (186,232) - 17,184 34916 330449 4439791 369,700 4809491
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$4,004,602,000 (2017: * REREERREGAVBERIRRANZEEHE
HK$4,369,849,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 4,004,602,000 78 7T (== — 4+ F : 4,369,849,000 /5
JT) °

#  The entire balance of fair value through other comprehensive income reserve belongs to non- ~ # BATEFAREMEERARE 2 2HE808
recycling portion. SEREEER o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEHEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ-Z—\F+-A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\f -—T— L%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TH T T T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEEZRERE
Profit before income tax xBTS B R & A 347,112 1,432,764
Adjustments for: IR
Depreciation and amortisation e i 10 128,913 122,797
Provision and impairment losses BB LBAEEE 21,729 198,933
Net deficit/(surplus) on revaluation of investment WEYESFH LM
properties (Rh) F58 30 4,066 (17,605)
Share of profit of associates iy e 28 (8,387) (20,711)
Share of loss of joint ventures EiEEEhEEE 2,678 1,159
Interest income from non-banking business FERITEF 2 F B WA 8 (5,648) (9,723)
Finance costs B 75 & A 9 65,828 68,453
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREHEHZ
equipment BB () 8 1,589 (1,711)
Fair value loss on early redemption of convertible REELRB®ERES 2
bonds N EEE 8 978 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWEH 12 = (1,382,042)
Dividend income % B U A (12,413) (4,842)
Operating profit before working capital changes LEESEEH 2 LEEN 546,445 387,472
(Decrease)/increase in due to clients FERtZ P FIE G ) /1N (1,692,930) 3,294,092
Increase in due from clients JE UK = P R IR S N (585,396) (346,798)
Increase/(decrease) in due to banks JEER 7T IEIE hn, CRl4) 1,165 (122)
Decrease/(increase) in due from banks FEUR SR 1T FR B A (180 ) 2,519,173 (344,243)
Increase in trade receivables 78 UK BR FR 12 0 (35,718) (35,523)
Decrease in inventories FERD 25,031 10,592
Decrease/(increase) in other assets Hup & (3m) 44,088 (211,580)
Increase in derivative financial assets PTHESREEL N (3,134) (2,199)
(Decrease)/increase in derivative financial liabilities TEEBMAaBECRY) g (14,680) 33,606
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEATBRFIE A0, Ot 2) 21,334 (39,539)
Increase in contract liabilities A aEEM 32,335 -
Decrease/(increase) in trading portfolio investments T HHEEAEER D, (1Eh) 102,370 (443,429)
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities HiadOnd) /#m (41,566) 50,025
Cash generated from operations REEBEEZRS 918,517 2,352,354
Income tax paid B TSR (131,585) (87,327)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBELEZH2FE 786,932 2,265,027
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment &2  BE K R &S FE - 12,177
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBRRRESMAFRE 12 - 1,560,381
Dividends received 2R B 12,413 24,842
Increase in held-to-maturity Investments BRI ERR AN = (773,608)
Decrease in other financial assets at amortised cost WEIEA AT Rz B B
BERD 274,866 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEREH 29 (113,030) (202,252)
Capital injection for joint ventures meEhETE 27 - (6,276)
Interest received from non-banking business IERITES 2 B WFH & 5,648 9,723
Decrease in short-term investments ERIRE R - 112,969
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries U EEHI B A RIIR & GRE) RA
HEE 51 (348,495) 71,295
Increase in available-for-sales financial assets AIHEESREEE N - (133,817)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing REZE (FTH) EXZzHE

activities JFEE (168,598) 675,434




Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued under share option scheme
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%)

2018
—E-N\EF

HK$'000
TR

193

2017

—E—tF

HK$'000
TAET

P15 38 511 1,138
Proceeds from disposal of interest in subsidiaries to S BB A R RS T IEIEAR
non-controlling interest W Z TS EE - 30,808
Proceeds from sales of repurchased corporate bonds HEBDARIES ZFTEHIE 27,566 392
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Uk B8 JE 7 A b 2 (158,833) (16,093)
Interest paid 2RFE (63,990) (68,282)
Proceeds from borrowings BEFTEHIE 710,999 136,573
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (188,285) (703,737)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company MARQEES NRMSEE 13 (261,113) (217,516)
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests ) FEI2 A% A 2 R A+ A% 2 (56,536) (17,630)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FEERERITE (2,041) 40,048
(Decrease)/increase in subordinate debt IRERETE G /1 (95,767) 16,627
Repayment of convertible bond BEABRRES (100,000) -
Repayment of notes payable BEENERE (100,000) -
Advance from a shareholder KE—BRREZBK 73,000 -
Net cash used in financing activities HETE A B2 FEE (214,489) (797,672)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEYWILMFEHE 403,845 2,142,789
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZBRERAELEEY 7,366,212 4,949,188
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net BRSBTS TR (83,136) 274,235
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—BzERER
HEEEY 7,686,921 7,366,212
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRBEEEYWERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and deposits REREFEX 17 7,654,811 7,373,427
Cash held on behalf of client REFEFEZHE 17 46,932 47,251
Bank overdraft RITEX 39 (14,822) (54,466)
7,686,921 7,366,212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BZ=ZE—-NF+-A=+—-HLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Cayman Islands. Its registered office address is P.0. Box
309, Ugland House, South Church Street, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is Units 1902—04, Level 19, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the "Group”) include:

—  Manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;
- Property investments; and
—  Banking and financial businesses.

In September 2018, the Group has completed the acquisition of 58.22% of the
issued share capital of Ernest Borel Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together
the “Ernest Borel”), which is listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1856
at HK$1.85 per share with the total consideration of HK$374,209,000. Since then,
Ernest Borel becomes a subsidiary of the Group. In October 2018, the Group has
further acquired an additional 24.28% of the issued share capital of Ernest Borel at
HK$1.85 per share with the total consideration of HK$156,077,000.

Other than the aforementioned transactions, there was no other significant change
in the Group’s operations during the year.

The Group's principal places of the business are in Hong Kong, Switzerland, United
Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following new
or revised standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new or revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018:

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Transfers of Investment Property

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarification to HKFRS 15)

HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Considerations

—RER

BHREEKRESREBR AR (ARG A
RASEHEFAMALBR AR - M
#% =8 BR i HE 4 P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South
Church Street, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands * ==
ZWMERVUNBBNENTHEEIFIRK
B ZES191902-04F - AR RIBRHORE
BEARZHMABR AT ([BRAH]) £ e

FR - ARBNEMB AR (G AEE])
ZEIBEBBRE:

- BRERGTERBERDHE:
- MERE R
- ROTKEWES-

RZZE-—NFNLA AEEIUNZR1.85E
TR BB RO BRIE IR A IR A7) K E B
NE (GBIEOREE] - RELRET EH o B
R SR 1 1856) BB 1TR%R AN58.22% ' AR E A
374,209,000/8 7T - B It - REEKAAEE
ZHBAT - R-_E—N\FE+A KEBHE
— A EA%1.85 8 TR AN BB R B8 B 31T
[i% 75 24.28% - #21X{& /& 156,077,000 78 7T °

BBl RZ 5o AEEZE 2 EBRARFE
WEALMERES -

AEEZ ERLEXMBUNES Kt R
FIXBEERPEARKMNME ([HE]) -

%g%%%ﬁﬁ%%%@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%

]

(a) RMFRTRRLMETE BB REZER -
RIE—N\F—HA—B4EX
RAFE AEBEXERATHES
S AE ([BEGMAE]) Bz
eI IERT 2 R BT REE(H
AISIERI B AV BMEEL]) @ %E
HARAEFA T N\E—A—HBFH
@Zi@%%ﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ
/)(‘ N

RN BEREEL BBMBREENE 15
“E-MUER-E-RFE 2B ERERER
Bz FENE BEREER

BERBREEL BRECHENENR L
“T-REE-E-RF BH RBEREAR
Bz FENE AENEIRE

BEGHENENR 257 BRRENE

EERBREENFIE  SBIA

EARBREREAEE BEPIUANZBA

EARBRERAEE BESIUANZHA
2183 (HEERERE R

F15%2EE)

BEEROBRERE  NERFRBAARE

Z88)-2EENH



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)
Changes in accounting policies

This is the first set of the Group’s financial statements in which HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 have been adopted. The impact of the adoption of HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (see note (A) below) and HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (see note (B) below) have been summarised below.
The other new or amended HKFRSs that are effective from 1 January 2018 did

not have any material impact on the Group's accounting policies.

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2) impairment; and
(3) hedge accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018
has resulted in changes in accounting policies of the Group and the SRR

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. RABBUBHREELN (FEMBRE

A (%)

(a) HMHETREEETERMBHRERER -
R-ZB-NF-A-BEX(E)
B REEE
It T AR T B 0 R A BB I 7 s 2R B
FIRRBBYBIHREERF 1558 27
BHE - RABBWHERE LR L5
TRITA(RTXHEWR) REEMB
BEENBISREATFITLANZHK
A (R TXHFEER) 2FEER T XX
o AT SR B A M oS %
Alg T N\F-HA-HAEER #A
SESTRRLBENERTE -

(A) BEEUBERELENEIREHTA
(TERMBHREENFIF)

() 2RIAZOBEAE
R-T—NF—-HA—-H&XZEH
W FEHE  BEPBRELL
FIFMREB T ERIFE 39S
BT E : HERNMFE - ZERIG G
ERMTASFZMA=[ENE: (1)

Q)RR : K (3) %

&3t -8 -F—)\F—A—BER
NES RS RS IPE A
£ B 5 ORI A BT RR 2
CEE FETTR

HKS$'000
TATT

Retained profits RE & F
Retained profits as at 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—tHE+=ZA=+—HZ
R F 3,421,989
Increase in expected credit losses (“ECL") EEEEEE ((TEREaEEE]D
(note (A)(ii) below) 3 (T SR EE (A)ii)) (12,280)
Reclassification of trading portfolio investments to BN AR GEEREEZERATE
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive FFAEMEEmEA ([RATFE
income (“FVOCI") (note (A)(i)(a) below) FFAEMEERAD 2&/EE
(3T EE (A)i)(a)) (131,974)
Reclassification of the entire convertible bond investment to BN BREMUBRRESFKRER
trading portfolio investments (note (A)(i)(f) below) R H5HEE®RE (T X @)0H) 1,621
Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets BN HAMHEESREESR
to other financial assets at amortised cost REHARYIER 2 H & 5
(note (A)(i)(c) below) EE (XM A)N0) (134)
Redlassification of available-for-sale financial assets ENOBAHEECREES
to trading portfolio investments (note (A)(i)(e) below) RGBEEE (T XHIFE A ) (903)
Recognition of deferred tax assets arising from BREBERTEBREEEEREE Y
the recognition of ECL BRI EE 2,179
Restated retained profits as at 1 January 2018 R=ZB-NF-A—-BZ&E
R B8 % A 3,280,498
Non-controlling interests R
Non-controlling interests as at R-ZB—tHF+=ZA=+—HBZ
31 December 2017 FEERRE R 343,245
Increase in ECL (note (A)(ii) below) TEBA(= B & 18 35 0 (T STH&E (A) i) (868)
Recognition of deferred tax assets arising from BRABEREHEEEEMEEZ
the recognition of ECL RIETITRE BE 110
Restated non-controlling interests as at R-ZB-NF-—A—BZREJ
1 January 2018 FE1E R = 342,487
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)

Al

2. RPERMBHREEN (FBUBRSE
A (%)
(a) RANETET RSB B R BIREER -
R-ZB-NF-—A-BEX(E)
B BEREE (F)
(A) BERMBEREERNBEIREMTA
(TERHBHREENEIR] (B)
() =MIAZHDBERFEE)

HK$'000
TAET

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve at
31 December 2017

Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets
to financial assets at FVOCI (note (A)(i)(b) below)

Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets
to other financial assets at amortised cost

RESELHE

R-ZEBE—tHF+ZA=+—-HZ

RESHRHE 117,525
EFOEAHIEEREES
BEAFEFAEMEERRAZ

R EE T MR A)i) b)) (118,562)
EoETHIEESsREES

WA AR B R E E

(note (A)(i)(c) below) (R 3P 3 (A)) (@) 134
Reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets to trading BROEAHEEEREER

portfolio investments (note (A)(i)(e) below) RH5HEEHRE (T X A))(E) 903
Restated investment revaluation reserve as at R=ZB-NF-—A—BZ&E

1 January 2018 REEM-REE -
FVOCl reserve BRFEFTABMZERA GE

FVOCI reserve as at 31 December 2017

Reclassification of trading portfolio investments to financial assets
at FVOCI (note (A)(i)(a) below)

Reclassification of available-for-sales financial assets
to financial assets at FVOCI (note (A)(i)(b) below)

R-E—tHE+=-A=+—-HB2
BRAFEFAHMEEBARFE -
EHPARSGEEREEERATE
HAREMEEMBRAZCREE

(2B (A (@) 131,974
EFOETHIEEREES
BAFEFAHEMEZEERAZ

T B E = (T X EE (A))b) 118,562
Restated FVOCI reserve as at 1 January 2018 R-ZB-NF-—A—BZREJ
BAFEFAEMBEZERARE 250,536

HKFRS 9 basically retains the existing requirements in HKAS 39 for the

BRP oS LR FIRER LR

classification and measurements of financial liabilities. However, it BEASHEDEREHES R

eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for financial assets of held
to maturity financial assets, loans and receivables and available-for-

BEZABERAEZRERE - R
m - ZEBUE AT A B G T 2R

sale financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material impact FIVHRLEMEEL - BER

on the Group's accounting policies related to financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments except for the embedded derivatives.

EXHEREE  BRMEEFUA
KA ESREE - RNE B

The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group's classification and measurement BHREEAFIFHAEEFTHE

of financial assets is set out below.

MEBEMIEERTAZ SR

RI\|EARLE - ERAANTET

ERRAN o BB 5 S 2 RIS 957

HBASECHEE D BRTE
FERIWT -



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables (that the trade
receivables do not contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall, at initial recognition,
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL"), transaction
costs. A financial asset is classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised
cost; (i) financial assets at FVOCI; or (iii) financial assets at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is generally based on
two criteria: (i) the business model under which the financial asset is
managed and (ji) its contractual cash flow characteristics (the “solely
payments of principal and interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI
criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no longer required
to be separated from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument is assessed as a whole for the classification.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met and it has not been designated as at FVPL:

e |tis held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if both of the following
conditions are met and it has not been designated as at FVPL:

e ltis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

ZZT—)\FFH 2018 Annual Report

197

2. RABBUBHREELN (FEMBRE
A (%)

R ST BB MR E 2R -
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for
trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. All other
financial assets not classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are classified as FVPL. This includes all derivative financial assets.
On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI or FVPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The following accounting policies would be applied to the Group's
financial assets as follows:

Financial assets Financial assets at FVPL are subsequently
at FVPL measured at fair value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial assets Financial assets at amortised cost are
at amortised costs  subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets Debt investments at fair value through other
at Fvocl comprehensive income are subsequently
(debt investments) measured at fair value. Interest income

calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets Equity investments at fair value through
at Fvocl other comprehensive income are measured
(equity investments) at fair value. Dividend income are recognised

in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or
loss.

2. RPERMBHREEN (FBUBRSE
A (%)

(a)

R ST BB MR E 2R -

R-ZB-NF-—A-BEX(E)

B BEREE (F)

(A) BERMBEREERNBEIREMTA
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
(@) As at 1 January 2018, certain listed equity investments were
reclassified from trading portfolio investments to financial assets
at FVOCI. The Group intends to hold these equity investments
for long term strategic purposes. Under HKFRS 9, the Group
has designated these equity investments at the date of initial
application as financial assets at FVOCI. As a result, financial
assets with a fair value of HK$506,863,000 were reclassified
from trading portfolio investments to financial assets at FVOCI
and accumulated fair value gains of HK$131,974,000 were
reclassified from retained profits to FVOCI reserve on 1 January
2018. The fair value of these listed equity investments at 31
December 2018 is HK$492,759,000 and a fair value loss of
HK$14,104,000 would be recognised in profit or loss for the year
as if no reclassification was made upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) In addition to (a) above, certain listed equity investments
were reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets to
financial assets at FVOCI. The Group intends to hold these
equity investments for long term strategic purposes. As a
result, the carrying amount of these listed equity investments
of HK$237,959,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale
financial assets to financial assets at FVOCI and accumulated
fair value surplus of HK$118,562,000 were reclassified from
investment revaluation reserve to FVOCI reserve on 1 January

2018.
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B BEREE (F)
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() =MIAZHDBERFEE)

(a)

RZZBE—N\F—HA—RB &F
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Hip2mEWAZEREE -
Ay R—ZT—N\F—H—
H - A& 4 506,863,000 75 7T
JEREERISEEEE
BN EERAFEFAH
HEEWRAZCRIEE MR
=t A 7B U 25 131,974,000 75
TRIRREB R EHRD>EE
BAFEFAEMZERA
BE - RN—E—NE+=A
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)

(9

As at 1 January 2018, listed debt instruments were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to other financial assets
at amortised cost as the Group's business model is hold-to-
collect contractual cash. These listed debt instruments meet the
SPPI criterion. As such, listed debt instruments with a carrying
amount of HK$178,747,000 were reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets to other financial assets at amortised
cost and accumulated fair value deficits of HK$134,000 were
reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to retained
profits on 1 January 2018. The fair value of these listed debt
instruments as at 31 December 2018 is HK$147,573,000; the
carrying amount of HK$27,162,000 would be mature for the year;
and a fair value gain of HK$1,091,000 would be recognised in
other comprehensive income for the year as if no reclassification
was made upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

As at 1 January 2018, certain equity investments were reclassified
from available-for-sale financial assets to financial assets at
FVOCI. These equity investments were previously stated at cost
as they do not have quoted price in an active market. The Group
intends to hold these equity investments for long term strategic
purposes. Therefore, the Group has now designated these equity
investments at the date of initial application as financial assets
at FVOCI. As at 1 January 2018, the previous carrying amount
of these equity investments of HK$6,023,000 was assessed as
approximate to the fair value.

2. RPERMBHREEN (FBUBRSE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)

(e)

As at 1 January 2018, certain investments in other financial
products stated at fair value were reclassified from available-
for-sale financial assets to trading portfolio investments as
these unlisted investments failed to meet the SPPI criterion.
As such, these investments at fair value of HK$65,639,000
were reclassified from available-for-sale investments to trading
portfolio investments and the fair value deficits of HK$903,000
were reclassified from investment revaluation reserve to retained
profits on 1 January 2018.

As at 1 January 2018, the entire of debt component and
conversion option component of the convertible bond investment
were combined and reclassified to trading portfolio investments.
The conversion option component causes the financial assets
to fail to meet the SPPI criterion. This is because the embedded
feature cannot be separated under HKFRS 9 and the contractual
terms of that convertible bond receivable as a whole do not give
rise solely to payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding of the convertible bond investment. As a
result, that convertible bond investment as a whole is classified
as trading portfolio investments. As at 1 January 2018, the
difference between the previous carrying amount and the fair
value of HK$1,621,000 has been adjusted in the opening retained
profits.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2. EMNEBYEREERN((EFEBMERE

(“HKFRSs") (Continued) Al (%8)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018 (a) BRAFFISLIETERMKRELER -
(Continued) RZB-—NE—A—BEXM(E)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued) ETREREE ()

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued) (A) ERMBHREENFEIREMTE
([EBVEREEANEIR] (B)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued) () &#MITAEZHER=(E)
The following table summarises the original measurement categories THREMAREER T —\F—
under HKAS 39 and the new measurement categories under HKFRS 9 A—BEEsmEERER LS
for each class of the Group's financial assets as at 1 January 2018: FFERIEIR 2 REFT 2R
BRBEE B BREERIFE IR 2
FTEER
Carrying amount Carrying amount
as at Effect of as at
Original classification New classification 1 January 2018 adoption of 1 January 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 under HKFRS 9
BREFBEE: BREEBUG
ZEBISE395 BEERFEIR
RZZ-NE BEHREEHE RKRZB-N\E
REFBEHEL BEEEHBRE —H—AH HEAFER —A-A8
FE39E 2 REE ERIFE K 23 E R ZEREE 2% ZEHE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT AT
Cash and deposits Loans and receivable Amortised cost 7,420,678 - 7,420,678
BeRFEH BER KT RE AT IR
Due from clients Loans and receivable Amortised cost 1,011,516 (3,335) 1,008,181
W E PR B R GR R A R
Due from banks except for precious metal ~ Loans and receivable Amortised cost 5,875,901 2,179 5,873,722
EWRITHIE(EEBRIN B R EYGR B
Due from banks — Precious metal Financial assets at FVPL FVPL 45,977 - 45,977
EUWSRTRE-ELB BATEFANGFSEE  BRATEFNET
ZEREE HER
Trading portfolio investments Financial assets at FVPL FVPL 134,168 - 134,168
RHEREE BATEFANGFSEE  BRATEFNET
ZEREE HEE
Trading portfolio investments Financial assets at FVPL FvoCl 506,863 - 506,863
(note (A)(i)(a))
RHEEHRE BATEFARHIEE  RATEFAE M
2 BEE (M A@) FEBA
Derivative financial assets except for Financial assets at FVPL FVPL 4,609 - 4,609

conversion option component

fTEemBEERESORI) BATESAENIEE  ROFEFAEN

EREE FEE
Trade receivables Loans and receivable Amortised cost 506,287 (1,793) 504,494
e R B Rk RN A
Available-for-sales financial assets Available-for-sale (at fair value) ~ FVOCI 237,959 - 237,959
(note (A)(i)(b))
AtHESREE AEEE(BRATEE)  EATEGAEM
(PR EE (A (b)) FERA
Available-for-sales financial assets Available-for-sale (at fair value) ~ Amortised cost 178,747 (28) 178,719
(note (A)(i)(c))
AHNESREE AHHE(RATEER) REENARER
(P ZE (A))())
Available-for-sales financial assets Available-for-sale (at fair value) ~ FVPL 65,639 - 65,639

(note (A)(i)(e))
AHHESREE AHEE (RATENE) RATERARR
(FTFE (A)i)(e)) % EE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2. EMNEBYEREERN((EFEBMERE

(“HKFRSs") (Continued) Al (%8)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018 (a) BRAFFISLIETERMKRELER -
(Continued) RZB-—NE—A—BEXM(E)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued) ETREREE ()

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued) (A) BERMBH/EERNEINEMTA
(TEBMBRELERNFEIRD (B)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued) () &#MITAEZHER=(E)
Carrying amount Carrying amount
as at Effect of as at
Original classification New classification 1 January 2018 adoption of 1 January 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 under HKFRS 9
BEEES RERBHH
R 3955 |EERE IR
R-ZE-N\FE KHEERE RNZE-NF
BREEBEHER BRERBHBRE —H—H BEEAEIR —-A—H
$E39/ZEEER BERIE 92 3B ZEHE A% ZIREE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx TET
Available-for-sales financial assets Available-for-sale (at fair value) ~ FVOCI 6,023 - 6,023
(note (A)(i)(d))
ARHECRERE AHRHE (RATEIER)  RATESAEM
(P2 (AY)(@)) 2EBA
Held-to-maturity investments Loans and receivable Amortised cost 1,138,704 (500) 1,138,204
HEIHRE ERRERT BB AT R
Other assets except for debt component  Loans and receivable Amortised cost 4,171 (5,313) 436,864
Hi&E (RBHBHHRIN) ER KW tize Sl
Convertible bond investment Conversion option component: ~ As a whole: FVPL 8,492 1,621 10,113

Financial assets at FVPL
Debt component: Loans and
receivables (note (A)(i)(f)
ARREFRA BMRER S RATFEFA BE:ELOTERA
HEHBR e REE RS EE
BEHD  ERRERK
(FEE (A)O)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2. EMNEBYEREERN((EFEBMERE

(“HKFRSs") (Continued) Al (%8)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018 (a) BRAFFISLIETERMKRELER -
(Continued) RZB-—NE—A—BEXM(E)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued) ETREREE ()

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) (Continued) (A) ERMBHREENFEIREMTE
((EAMBEREENEIR] (B)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued) () &#MITAEZHER=(E)
At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Company'’s REBMBREEFEIFT 2 ER
management has assessed which business models apply to the ERBH  ARAREREDFEHM
financial assets held by the Group and has classified its financial assets BEEBGEABARAEEREZ
into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. eHEE WEKAESREESE
ZEECEAUBERELEAFE IR
A e
The following tables summarised the impact, net of tax, of transition TEHMINR =T -NF—HA—H
to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of reserves, retained profits and BEZEBVHREERNEIRE
non-controlling interests as of 1 January 2018 as follows (increase/ i RERN RIEERAER F V)
(decrease)): ESRZ 2 (HBREIE) 0T (1€
S CRA)) -
Other
financial  Available-
Trading Financial  Derivative assets at for-sale Held-to-
portfolio asset at financial  amortised financial maturity Other
investments Fvocl assets cost assets  investments assets
BOTHE
FAR M REHEAAR
Rafe  2EKA i1 FRzHfE WHEE 52
As at 1 January 2018 RE ZeREE <SREE <CREE SREE YPRE HpEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'00
THT FHL T TET TET T
Opening halance - HKAS 39 ENGER-BEeER
£39% 641,031 - 4,680 - 488,368 1,138,704 450,598
Reclassification of trading portfolio investments ~ £¥ 25X HAREE
to financial assets FVOCI RRATEGFARMZE
BAZEREE (506,863) 506,863 - - - - -
Reclassification of available-for-sale BENARUHLECREE
financial assets to other financial assets RREBIATIR 2 A
at amortised cost SREE - - - 178741 (178,747) - -
Reclassification of available-for-sale BENARUHLECREE
financial assets to trading portfolio investments £ 544K E 65,639 - - - (65,639) - -
Reclassification of available-for-sale financial ~ EF A BAELECBEE
assets to financial assets at FVOCI ERATEALMEE
WAZEBEE - 243,982 - - (243,982) - -
Reclassification of held-to-maturity investments ~ E 372 S 2EHEER
to other financial assets at amortised cost REERAIE  HM
SREE - - - 1,138,704 - (1,138,704) -
Redlassification of entire convertible bond sHH B2 HURRES
investment to trading portfolio investments BREERHHEARE 8492 - n) - - - (8421)
Effect of initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BRERE R BREE
ELY A2 1,61 - - - - - -
Recognition of additional expected credit losses ~ # A2 M EEIE E B 1R - - - (528) - - (5,313)
Opening balance - HKFRS 9 ENER-FRUBRE

RIE 95 209,920 750,845 4609 1,316,923 - - 436,864




2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s impairment model
by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the “expected credit
losses ("ECL") model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognised
ECL for due from clients, due from banks, trade receivables and other
financial assets at amortised costs and other assets earlier than HKAS
39. Cash and cash equivalents are subject to ECL model but the
impairment is assessed to be immaterial.

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting date:
and (2) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables
using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECL based on
lifetime ECL. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECL are based on the 12-months
ECL. The 12-months ECL is the portion of the lifetime ECL that results
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information. The Group's
debt investment at FVOCI are considered to have low credit risk since
the issuers’ credit rating are high.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECL

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are
deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
investment at FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCl, instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the assets.

BRERRE B AR A

2. RPEEBPBRE

ER((BBUBHRSE

A (%)

(a) RANETET RSB B R BIREER -
R-ZB-NF-—A-BEX(E)
B BEREE (F)
(A) BEERUBRELEUEIREHITA

(ii)

(EBMBHELENEIFR] ()
SREERE(E)
AHIERERZE (H)
REMBHEMAENS BHE
EBBDERNEARREES
B REABYMEEEERERMT
ERsmEB®R12{ER Az Al gE&
MEMELZ2HRHEEER
BB o A RBEEREREEE
[\ B A IR A AN - B S E R 2 1
i‘ﬁﬂ;ﬁﬁ‘”ﬂ%% TRETTRMEEZ
SERREL BV HEREAR
KB ANRS - LA&B’W%HEH;@FEJ%T%
o ANEEZEHEBAEFTLE
PXAN S TR Al & 15 Z/\EEETF
B - b B FEIRIE AN SR IR S 4K 5
RABEEFEZEEREMLER
BtR DM BREATEEER - AR
BITAZEEFRERS  AEEZ
N EFARMEREA ZER
BRERRRAEAEEERR -

AEBERREBEECERR
P8 HA B 3B 30 B B ARG 0 o

AEERUTBERATRRERE
ELREOBR : (MERATK
ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂl‘%@i\%iﬁﬁﬁg,ﬁ
£ MAEE I MR REETEER
B (REFE) F178) I( e
BMEEBHREE0E -

A EMEERERREE 2 &R
HEAXAEEEREERR 2 &
BAHM -

BHEEBRZ 25
REHKN AT E 2 S REERIE
BN EEREAEANIDR - 5L
NFEFAEMEERAZES
REMS BEEENEM2EK
AFER - MR EEREE °



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model

(a)

(b)

(d)

Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which adopts a life time ECL for all
trade receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.

Impairment of debt investments

The Group's debt investments are measured at amortised costs
and are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months
ECL.

Impairment of due from clients and due from banks

The Group's due from clients and due from banks except
for precious metal are measured at amortised costs. ECL is
determined by reference to the estimation of the exposure at
default ("EAD"), probability of default ("PD") as well as a loss
given default ("LGD"). At the initial recognition, 12 months ECL
(stage 1) would be considered resulting from the possible default
event within next 12 months. Lifetime ECL (stage 2) would be
considered resulting from the significant increase in credit risk
on the balances. Lifetime ECL (stage 3) would be considered
resulting from the occurrence of credit impaired on the balances.

Impairment of other assets

Other assets at amortised cost of the Group includes dividend
receivable from an associate, amounts due from an associate
and related companies, other interest receivables and other
receivables.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2.

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018
(Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Impact of the ECL model (Continued)
As a result of the above change, the following table summarises the
impact of the new HKFRS 9 impairment model results in additional
expected credit losses as at 1 January 2018 as follows:

RABEBMBHREELN (FEMBRE
A (%)
(a) HMHETREEETERMBHRERER -
R-ZB-NF-—A-BEX(E)
B RESE (F)
(A) BERMBEREERNBEIREMTA
(EBMBHELENEIFR] ()
(i) EREEZRMEE)
FHIEREBRER ZZE (&)
B BB TREUATE BN
BREERNEIFRMERN 2 FE
BN _FT-NFE—-A—BEXL
BINEHEEBRET

HK$'000
FHE T
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 IRIEE B 5485 395%
RZE—+F+-A=+—HZEEREHE 56,279
Recognition of additional expected credit losses on: BLATIE B REINEHEEEE
— Due from clients — R RIE 3,335
— Due from banks —FEUWSR1TFRIE 2,179
— Trade receivables —FEUBR 3R 1,793
— Other financial assets at amortised cost —IREEKAS R Et e mEE 528
— Other assets —HiEE 5,313
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 BIBRE BN G REERE IR
RZZE—N\F—A—HZEERE 69,427

(ii)  Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in HKFRS 9 such
that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new ECL rules are therefore not reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, but are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position on 1 January 2018.
This mean that differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained profits and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does not reflect the
requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.

(iii) @
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(A) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9") (Continued)

(a)

(iif)

(B)

Transition (Continued)

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that existed at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9:

. The determination of the business model within which a financial
asset is held;

e The designation and revocation of previous designations of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities as measured at
FVPL; and

e The designation of certain investments in equity investments not
held for trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low credit risk at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 9, then the Group has assumed that the
credit risk on the asset had not increased significantly since its initial
recognition.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts, HKAS 18
Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a
five-steps model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect transition
method. The Group has recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the date of initial application (that is, 1 January 2018) if any.
As a result, the financial information presented for 2017 has not been
restated.

HKFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into
consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The
management of the Group has assessed the impacts of adopting HKFRS
15 on its consolidated financial statements and considered there is no
significant impact on the Group's revenue recognition policy.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2.
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)
(a) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018
(Continued)
Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(B) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

FREBMBRELEN (FRMBERE
2R (58)
() BRI REERTEBUMBRERER —
R-ZB-N&E—A—-BEXH)
B BERH ()
(B) EBHBREEAEISKARST

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time as when
the control of the goods has been transferred to the customers and
there is no unfulfilling performance obligation after the acceptance
of the goods. Service fees and commission income are recognised
at a point in time basis when the relevant services provided to the
customers and there is no unfulfilling performance obligation after the
services rendering. Revenue from custody account service and asset
management service is recognised over time so as to depict the pattern
of delivery of services.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, if there is any satisfied performance
obligation but where the Group does not have an unconditional
right to consideration, the Group should recognised a contract
asset. No contract asset is recognised upon transition. If the Group
does not satisfied any performance obligation but the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration, the Group should recognised
contract liabilities. No contract liabilities is recognised upon transition.

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on identification
of performance obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no significant impact on these
consolidated financial statements as the Group had not previously
adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this, its first, year.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property — Transfers of
Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from investment
properties there must be a change in use and provides guidance on
making this determination. The clarification states that a change of use
will occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is supporting evidence that a change has
occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in the
standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other forms of
evidence to support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
consolidated financial statements as the clarified treatment is
consistent with the manner in which the Group has previously assessed
transfers.

YEHZWA (&)
EmHERARE RIEHIED S
BERFARNEMmEBERRERILE
HMABITRAOBEZ X —RKERH
FER - RIS E LA WARAEP
TR AR AR B R B AR 1R AL
BERHABTENEE 2R —FHHE
R o EERP RS L EEEE
ARAS U A BE B I R AR, - DA R (1
ARAs 2 B o

RER M & 8 B 75 5 ZE RIS 15 5%
% A EERIERENEEE
I EUEAAE 2 EARAFHER - RIAR
SERERSNEE - NBIERK
BHERANEE - MAKEL &<
BAERBABEEREEREF W
BB Z ERIFHER > RIASEE
ERAENRE -ERRBEER
BHAaE-

EREVBERESEAEISHE 2B
AI-EEFITYANZBA (BT
B BREERE 155 2FF)
TR HRE LB 21EFT
BREEBBFHETEEZER  EH
REARKEA  MBEREFTA]
FBERE

F A= [ S B I SRR A BB A%
HEEREISHEIL BERARRNEFE
RNZERF  BIRNZEERT Y
HZERAMBRRTBEATE -

BERIEABOR BT R
BNE-BRRANE
TR RE WEE AR
VAL ERRNE  UREEAR
BRBBIRGIES| BB -
S RN s S TUE
2% RABEENARNE A
R AR -

ZAEFT IR % R 2 BE BB
ENEMRIFRBE Bt K
= 2 MR 7E I A A o

F A VB S 18 ) R 3 B 5 [ S A AT
hEER ) X — B RS
AIHZSRAMBHRRLELE -



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2018
(Continued)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(B) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on determining the date of the
transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for transactions
that involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability. The interpretation specifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part thereof)
is the date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

The adoption of this interpretation has no impact on the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has not paid or received advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's
consolidated financial statements, have been issued but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?
and HKAS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Combinations'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Arrangements'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes'

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Costs'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017. The effective date has now been deferred/removed.
Early application of the amendments of the amendments continue to be
permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”
and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.

A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group may be required
to recognise a right-of-use assets and corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirement
may result in change in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. The Group is currently assessing its potential impact. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
Group completes the review.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$112,456,000. HKAS17 does not require the recognition
of any right-of-use assets and liabilities for future payments for these leases;
instead, certain information is disclosed as operating lease commitments.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS16, and hence the Group may be required
to recognise a right-of-use assets and corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS16.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of Material

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. An entity will need to assess whether the
information, either individually or in combination with other information,
is material in the context of the financial statements. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users.

The amendments clarify that, in assessing whether an information could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of the primary users, an
entity must consider the characteristics of those users as well as its own
circumstances.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income Taxes,
by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to examine
and have full knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should measure
current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines it
is not probable, then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met — instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-term interests (“LTI")
in associates or joint ventures which form part of the net investment in the
associates or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI
before the impairment losses guidance within HKAS 28.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle - Amendments
to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make small,
non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of a business
obtains control over a joint operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should therefore be remeasured to
its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle - Amendments
to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKFRS 11 which clarify that when a party that
participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation which is
a business and subsequently obtains joint control of the joint operation, the
previously held equity interest should not be remeasured to its acquisition
date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle - Amendments
to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax
consequences of dividends are recognised consistently with the transactions
that generated the distributable profits, either in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle - Amendments
to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing made
specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale would become
part of the funds an entity borrows generally and therefore included in the
general pool.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised when
an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is in the progress of making assessments of the potential impact
of these new or revised HKFRSs upon initial application.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated financial statements also
included the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical
cost basis except for investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value. The adoption of new or revised HKFRSs
and the impacts on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 2.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are used in
preparing these consolidated financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management'’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates.

The Company'’s financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis though the Company was in a net current liability position of
HK$696,822,000 as at 31 December 2018. The directors are of the opinion,
after considering the distribution of profits available from its subsidiaries
when necessary, that the Company will have sufficient cash resources to
satisfy its future working capital and other financial requirements and the
Company can be operated as a going concern for the next twelve months.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKS$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquire is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure non-controlling interest that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with
the transition requirements in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Structured entities

The collective investment instruments of the Group are structured entities
as defined under HKFRS 12. If the Group operates such an investment
instrument acting as an agent primarily in the interests of investors, this
structured entity is not consolidated. Investments in such investment
instruments held by the Group are recognised as financial instruments. If
the Group acts as principal primarily in its own interests, the investment
instrument is consolidated.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are
initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted
for the Group's share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net
assets except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

44

4.5

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of
the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets. Accounting policies on impairment of
interests in associates are described in note 4.7 below.

Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a contractual
arrangement that confers joint control over the relevant activities of the
arrangement to the group and at least one other party. Joint control is
assessed under the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either:

e Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only the net assets of the
joint arrangement; or

e Joint operations: where the group has both the rights to assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements, the Group
considers:

e The structure of the joint arrangement;

e The legal form of joint arrangements structured through a separate
vehicle;

e The contractual terms of the joint arrangement agreement; and

e Any other facts and circumstances (including any other contractual
arrangements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of
the investment in joint venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate of
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. The consideration transferred is measured at the
aggregate of fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is
allocated to each of the relevant cash generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash generating
unit ("CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset's carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

e property, plant and equipment;

e prepaid land lease payments;

e intangible assets; and

e interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset or cash generating unit (note 4.6), discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash generating unit.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.8 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

4.9 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, where
the fair value of the buildings could be measured separately from the fair
value of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other items
of plant and equipment, other than construction in progress (“CIP"), are
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified
impairment.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working condition and location for its
intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the year in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Over the terms of the leases or estimated
useful lives, ranging between 10 years and
50 years, whichever is shorter

Over the terms of the leases, or estimated
useful life of 5 years, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 6% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 6% to 50%
equipment

Motor vehicles

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

9% to 30%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

CIP, which mainly represents renovation work on buildings and installation of
machinery, is stated at cost less any impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs incurred during the periods of construction, installation and testing.
CIP is reclassified to the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of CIP
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

4.10 Investment properties

4.1

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-property basis. Any
such property interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect to both
the location and the nature of the investment property. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either change in the fair value or the sale of an
investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) The Group as lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases. Where
the Group has the right to use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
using straight-line method over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.11 Leases (Continued)

()

(ii)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance lease, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets is
included in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance lease. Subsequent
accounting for assets under finance lease agreements corresponds
to those applied to comparable acquired assets. The corresponding
finance lease liability is reduced by lease payments less finance
charges.

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The Group as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and presented
according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on the straight-line method over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

(iii) Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are up-front payments to acquire the long-
term interests in usage of land on which the buildings are situated.
These payments are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment loss. Amortisation is calculated using straight-line
method over the respective lease terms.

4.12 Intangible assets

()

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
definite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives
as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Supplier and distribution networks 10 years
Brand names 10 years
Patents 10 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be amortised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is capitalised if it can be
demonstrated that:

e itis technically feasible to develop the product for it to be sold;

e adequate resources are available to complete the development;
e thereis an intention to complete and sell the product;
e the Group is able to sell the product;

e sale of the product will generate future economic benefits; and

e expenditure on the project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the periods the
Group expects to benefit from selling the products developed. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria and
expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are
tested for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (note 4.7).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount; however, the carrying amount should not be increased above
the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that
would have resulted had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. All reversals are recognised in the profit or loss
immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13A Financial instruments (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"): Assets
that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through OCI.
Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13A Financial instruments (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for
trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss
on derecognition. All other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL")
on trade receivables, contract assets, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13A Financial instruments (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables
using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets at amortised cost or at FVOCI, the ECLs
are based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

For the due from clients and due from banks, except for precious metal,
ECL is determined by reference to the estimation of the exposure
at default ("EAD"), probability of default ("PD") as well as a loss
given default ("LGD"). The 12-months and lifetime PDs represent
the probability of default occurring over the next 12 months and the
remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents
the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment
of principal and interest from the reporting date to the default event
together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The
LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default,
taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of
collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time
value of money.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13A Financial instruments (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the
liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13A Financial instruments (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018) (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for the gains and losses arising from the Group's own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade payables,
borrowings, corporate bonds, subordinate debt and other financial
liabilities issued by the Group are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL provision measured
in accordance with principles of the accounting policy set out in
4.13(ii); and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15.

ZZT—)\FFH 2018 Annual Report

229

4, FEESHBE(E)
LBASRITRE(BEZZE—N\E—HF—HEE
AZEsBeR) (8)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EHEEE)
BRATVEFABANIEENERE
& (%)
RNETERE - R FER AR
SEENERAEIRAFER
B RAHERPHRREELNBRE
ARE NS E R R - AR E
BERREMEERARNERAE
BreEMRoBEaMREER
B1E B R b & 4 r U st B R BR
B o 103 ) 2 S 1R R A RERR Y A F
B W et sk & B F R A B IR %
FL R A EWIE AN -

RBHERIIIENERMAE
HHEERATIRN SR AE (B2
ERNERR B8 - REIES AR
BEHRAEERTHEGSRE
18) BE1& {50 P B B M SOR 4% 8 3K A
AETE - BN SR OEN S E
BARRER

RIEERBEMNEHBRETE
AR ms BRSNS ERRA
FERR ©

BRI &%

ERN A ECREEN TR
BEMNEERAARREBIES
FEMBA KA SRS HITE - B
KNEAReREEXABTE
F HA Sk E A RO AT HA ) O ERERG IR
EEF RIS WA SN HEFIE

BRATA
RRAFETHRATERABER
EMRE R BT ©

BBIEREHN

BB ERENTIEERHARSES
ASZHIEESLE  UEEREAR
RIEERBAREREEE TAR
HEZSCHEE SNl N ENTES
THIEK - AAREEE H /I IEtE
EBENFEAS S FSE BN
EERAEDNPIRAFERE L
BERANEBREENRIKAT
LARERR © Y1 HER 1R - NEEIERIA
TREESETEFHEREY:
()RR B EE - BMRIE4.13() BT
EETRR R A ENBREEE
BEE )T EReER (10
BE) BBV RELENES
SR AR Bl FER A R -



230

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13A Financial instruments (accounting policies applied from
1 January 2018) (Continued)
(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a creditor to
settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a result of renegotiating
the terms of that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss
for the year.

4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017)

(0

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as trading portfolio
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets, held-to-maturity investments and derivative financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the end of each reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash
inflows from the investments expire or are transferred and substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

(i)
(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss mainly represent
trading portfolio investments, which are mainly financial assets held
for trading and they may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss. They are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term, or it is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss if the following criteria are met:

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management strategy
and information about the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management personnel; or

—  the financial asset contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets included in
this category are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by reference
to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where
no active market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these financial assets. Dividend
and interest income is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies in note 4.19.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
These are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

()
(b)

(9}

(d)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Available-for-sale financial assets
These include non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at
fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value excluding
any dividend and interest income is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses (see the policy below)
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity would be recycled to profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investment in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition.

Investments in convertible bonds
The component parts of the convertible instruments are classified
separately as debt component and conversion option derivative.

At the date of acquisition of investments in convertible bonds,
the initial value of the debt component is the residual value after
separating out the initial fair value of conversion option component. In
subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible instruments
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the acquisition of the convertible
investments are allocated to debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the debt component are included in the
carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible instruments using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

(i)
(e)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Due from banks and clients

Balances due from banks and clients include non—derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than:

e Those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the
near term and those that the Group, upon initial recognition,
designates as at FVTPL;

e Those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as
available-for-sale; or

e Those for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its
initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, amounts due from banks and clients are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Therefore, the Group recognises interest income using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected behavioural life of the loan, hence, recognising the effect
of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and
other characteristics of the product life cycle (prepayments, penalty
interest and charges). If expectations are revised the adjustment is
booked a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount in
the consolidated statement of financial position with an increase or
reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised
through interest and similar income in the profit or loss.

Securities borrowing and lending transactions

Securities borrowing and lending transactions are backed by collateral.
In such transactions, the Group lends or borrows securities against
securities or cash deposits as collateral. The Group also borrows
securities from the securities portfolios of individual clients. Shares
and debt instruments are used for securities borrowing and lending
operations. Securities received or delivered within the scope of
securities borrowing or lending transactions are recognised or
derecognised in the consolidated statement of financial position only
if control over the contractual rights connected with the securities is
transferred.

In securities lending operations, the cash deposit received is recognised
under “cash and deposits” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and a corresponding liability is recognised under “cash
deposits for loaned securities”.

In securities borrowing transactions, the cash deposit made is
eliminated from the consolidated statement of financial position and a
corresponding receivable is recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

(i)
(9)

(h)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets held/sold under resale/repurchase
agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements are transactions that the
Group acquires financial assets which will be resold at a predetermined
price in the future date under resale agreements. Financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements are transactions that the Group sells
financial assets which will be repurchased at a predetermined price in
the future date under repurchase agreements.

The cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under
the resale and repurchase agreements in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Assets held under resale agreements are recorded in
memorandum accounts as off-balance sheet items. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The difference between the sale and repurchase consideration, and that
between the purchase and resale consideration, are amortised over the
period of the respective transaction using the effective interest method
and are included in interest income and interest expense respectively.

Held to maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity for which the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than
(a) those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; and (b) those that
meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment losses.

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no longer
appropriate to classify an investment as held-to-maturity, it shall be
reclassified as available-for-sale and remeasured at fair value.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

(i)
0]

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets other than at
fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine whether
there is any objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset. Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

—  granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s financial
difficulty; and

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

- Due from banks and clients

At each reporting date, a credit assessment is made to see if there
are objective indications that the contractually owed amount
may not be recovered in full. If there are such indications, specific
value adjustments for credit risks are made on these impaired
loans. Specific value adjustments for credit risks are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position as write-
downs of the carrying amount of the loan in question. The value
adjustment is measured on the basis of the difference between
the carrying amount of the receivable and the prospective
recoverable amount, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined in the initial recognition in consideration of the
net proceeds from the realisation of any collateral. Loans with
variable interest rates are discounted at the effective interest rate.
If there are changes with regard to the amount and the timing of
expected future cash flows compared to previous estimates, the
value adjustment for credit risks is adjusted and recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)
(i)  Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Due from banks and clients (Continued)

Non-performing loans are receivables for which the contractually
agreed capital and/or payments are overdue by more than 90
days and where there are no clear indications that they may be
recovered by later payments or the sale of collateral. Interest
more than 90 days overdue is subject to value adjustment, and is
only recorded in the profit or loss when it is paid. Loans are fixed
without interest when their collectability is so doubtful that an
accrual can no longer be considered reasonable. Non-performing
loans that are classified as completely or partially unrecoverable
are eliminated and charged to a specific value adjustment if one
exists.

Impaired loans are reclassified at full value if the outstanding
capital and interest is once again paid on time according to
contractual agreements and if further credit risk requirements
are fulfilled. The recovery of loans that had previously been
written off and taken off the books is recorded in profit or loss.
The existing procedures for the determination and calculation of
specific value adjustments results in a comprehensive assessment
of loans; accordingly, portfolio value adjustments are generally
unnecessary. Realised income from loans that are sold before
their maturity or repaid early are recorded in profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost, other than due from
banks and clients

A provision for impairment of loans and receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the year in which the impairment
occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the year in
which the reversal occurs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEETBE(E)
4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December LIBEMIA(ZE—LF+=-A=+—H
2017) (Continued) RIER 25T EER) (8)
(i)  Financial assets (Continued) (i) =@EEE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) SWMEERE(E)

- Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial
asset has been recognised directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss as an impairment loss.
That amount is measured as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment for investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in profit or
loss. The subsequent increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(ii) Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortised
cost. Management determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial liabilities were incurred.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligations specified in
the relevant contract are discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.13B Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied until 31 December

201
(ii)
(a)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

7) (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings, corporate bonds and subordinated debt
Borrowings, corporate bonds and subordinated debt are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the settlement or redemption of borrowings, corporate bonds and
subordinated debt is recognised over the terms of the borrowings,
corporate bonds and subordinated debt. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for
borrowing costs as set out in note 4.22.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Other financial liabilities

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost less settlement payments, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts or separated
from hybrid financial instruments, are initially recognised at fair value
on the date when the derivative contract is entered into. At the end of
each reporting period, the fair value is re-measured. Gain or loss arising
from changes in fair value is charged immediately to profit or loss for
the year, except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder (or the
beneficiary of the guarantee) for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within other
liabilities. Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group'’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income
is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantee issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 4.17 if and when it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average
basis, and in the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less any applicable selling expense and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

4.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, demand deposits
with banks, and short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values.

4.16 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deferred and recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset.

4.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision as described above and
the amount initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation, if
appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.18 Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for
items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and
recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 "Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Income tax (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and only

if,

(a)

(b)

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in net if,
and only if,

(a)

(b)

the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

4.19 Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018)

i)

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

i)

(a)

Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where the
period between the payment and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a customer that
is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Service fees and commission income

Service fees and commission income is generally recognised when the
corresponding service is provided.

Service fees and commission income are recognised at a point in time
when the relevant services such as broking services, provided to the
customers and there is no unfulfilling performance obligation after
services rendering. Custody account services and asset management
service is recognised over time so as to depict the pattern of delivery of
services.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group which
result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate. When a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan
commitment fees are recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

i)
(b)

ii)
(a)

Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time as when
the control of the goods has been transferred to the customer and there
is no unfulfilling performance obligation after the acceptance of the
goods.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017)

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as the
time when the goods are delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods. Revenue excludes any value-added tax, rebates and discounts.

Revenue from other sources

Interest income

Interest income arising from the use of entity assets by others is
recognised in profit or loss based on the duration and the effective
interest rate. Interest income includes the amortisation of any discount
or premium or other differences between the initial carrying amount of
an interest bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on
an effective interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of financial assets and liabilities and of allocating the interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial instrument. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, call and similar options)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all
fees and interests paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

Interest on the impaired financial assets is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount future cash flows (“unwinding of discount”)
for the purpose of measuring the related impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

ii)
(b)

(9]

Revenue from other sources (Continued)

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on straight-line
method over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income
Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

4.20 Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined contribution
plans and defined benefit pension plans.

(0]

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after payment of
the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect of defined contribution plans
are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current
liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government (the “Scheme”). These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The Scheme is responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments or
other post-retirement benefits beyond the employer contributions.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the PRC.

Defined benefit pension plans define an amount of pension benefit that
an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.20 Retirement benefits (Continued)

()

(ii)

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position in respect of defined pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflow using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to terms of the related pension obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market
rates on government bonds are used.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the related services.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

4.21 Share-based employee compensation
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions.

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share premium. When the
share options are lapsed, forfeited or still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time to
be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.23 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are used.
All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term monetary items forming
part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the date
of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on
an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FTESHEBE(E)
4.24 Share capital and share premium 4.24 BEAR KRG EE

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined using the
nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the issuance of share over
the par value. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from the share premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to
the extent that they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Where any group company purchases the Company's equity share capital,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to owners of the Company
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued any consideration received net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to owners of the Company.

4.25 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment information
based on the regular internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the Group's
major lines of business.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments: (a)
manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces; (b) property
investments and (c) banking and financial businesses.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of the
product and service lines requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are carried out at arm’s length
prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment results under
HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements prepared
under HKFRSs.

Segment assets include all assets but interests in associates, interests in joint
ventures, certain available-for-sale financial assets, certain trading portfolio
investments and short-term investments. In addition, corporate assets
which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to the
Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment. These include corporate bonds, borrowings and due
to related parties.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable segments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Such estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 4.6. The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or FVLCD. These calculations require the use of judgement and estimates of the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash
flows forecast and the suitable discount rates in order to calculate the present
value. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows management makes
assumptions about future revenues and profits. These assumptions relate to future
events and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the appropriate
adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk factors. Details in impairment
assessment are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
Calculation of FVLCD involves the selection of valuation model, adoption of key
assumption, and input data, which are subject to management judgement.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete and slow-moving
inventories, the Group would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare
the carrying value of inventories to their respective estimated net realisable
value. The assessment of the provision involves management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of inventories
and provision charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with definite useful lives using straight-line method over their
respective estimated useful lives, starting from the date on which the assets are put
into productive use, in accordance with accounting policy stated in notes 4.9 and
4.12. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables on a forward-looking basis. The provision matrix is determined
based on the Group's historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade and other receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Other receivables is considered 12-months
expected credit losses. In making the judgement, management considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information such as actual or expected
significant changes in the operating results of customers, actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business and customers’ financial position. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions
specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment
trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of
disposal (“FVLCD"). The calculations of value in use require the use of judgement
and estimates of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs, the
timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable discount rates in order to
calculate the present value. In the process of estimating expected future cash
flows management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits. These
assumptions relate to future events and circumstances. The actual results may vary
and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within the
next financial year. Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating
the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk factors.
Calculation of FVLCD involves the selection of valuation model, adoption of key
assumption, and input data, which are subject to management judgement.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Switzerland, United Kingdom,
Liechtenstein and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for income taxes and the timing of the payments of
related taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Assessment of identifiable assets and liabilities on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Upon completion of acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses, the directors have
assessed the acquisition-date fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed from the acquisition. The directors use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for the Group's intangible assets
obtained upon the acquisition of subsidiaries during the year. The fair values of the
intangible assets are estimated by an independent professional valuer. Where fair
value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the acquisition
exceed the fair value of consideration paid for the acquisition, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Warranty provision

Warrant provision is made for expenditure associated with future variable
services and repair cost related to warranty claims. The management makes
an assessment of the future costs related to this work by using the proportion
of actual tasks related to warranty work as the basis for the calculation. The
assessment of provision involves management judgement and estimates. When
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value of warrant provision and provision
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimation of defined benefit obligations

The Group operates three defined benefit plans. Pension costs for defined benefit
plans are assessed using the projected unit credit method in accordance with HKAS
19 (2011), Employee Benefits. Under this method, the cost of providing pensions
is charged to the profit or loss in accordance with the advice of the actuaries
who carry out a full valuation of the plans. The pension obligation is measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period based
on government agency or high quality corporate bonds with currency and term
similar to the estimated term of benefit obligations. All actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in full, in the year in which they occur, in other comprehensive
income.

Management appointed actuaries to carry out a full valuation of these pension
plans to determine the pension obligations that are required to be disclosed and
accounted for in the accounts in accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs.

The actuaries use assumptions and estimates in determining the fair value of the
defined benefit plans and evaluate and update these assumptions on an annual
basis. Judgement is required to determine the principal actuarial assumptions
to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and service costs.
Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can significantly affect the present
value of plan obligations and service costs in future periods.

Valuation adjustments on credit positions

Various factors can influence the expected credit loss allowances for credit
positions. Management considers factors such as external rating and days past due
to determine the HKFRS 9 staging allocation. Management further estimates the
EAD, PD as well as LGD to calculate the expected credit losses allowance.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for imminent threats if in the opinion of the
responsible experts the probability that losses will occur is greater than the
probability that they will not occur and if their amount can be reliably estimated.
In judging whether the creation of a provision and its amount are reasonable,
the best-possible estimates and assumptions as at the end of reporting periods
are applied. If necessary, these will be adjusted to reflect new knowledge and
circumstances at a later date. New knowledge may have a significant effect to
profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Research and development costs

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.12, costs associated with
research activities are expensed in profit or loss as they are incurred, while costs
that are directly attributable to development activities are recognised as intangible
assets provided they meet all the requirements as set out in note 4.12. This
requires the management to make judgements to distinguish the research phase
and development phase of the projects being undertaken. Research is original
and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific
or technical knowledge and understanding. Development is the application of
research, findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the production of
new or substantially improved materials devices, products, processes, systems or
services before the start of commercial production or use. Determining the amounts
to be expensed in profit or loss or to be capitalised required management to make
judgement, and assumptions regarding the expected progress and outcome of
the research and development activities the future expected cash generation of
the assets, discount rates to be applied, and also the expected period of, probable
future economic benefits. Because of the nature of the Group’s research and
development activities the criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset
are generally not met until late in the development stage of the projects. Hence
research costs are generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group's financial statements
require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value. The fair value
measurement of the Group's financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used in
determining fair value measurements are categorised into different levels based on
how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

—  Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

—  Level 2: observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1;
and

—  Level 3: unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available.

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest level of the
inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the item.
Transfers of items between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair value:

—  Due from banks — precious metal (note 18)

—  Trading portfolio investments (note 19)

—  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 20)

—  Derivative financial assets (note 21)
—  Derivative financial liabilities (note 21)
—  Investment properties (note 30)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement of the items
above, please refer to the respective notes.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TEEH
The chief operating decision-maker, being the Company's executive directors, FTELEREE (AERARAMITES)EE
have re-organised the Group's product and service lines as operating segments as HASREERMRBENABUATZELE S
follows: 3
(a) manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces; (@) BEHEEFTEREERDHE
(b)  property investments; and (b) MEHRE: K
(0 banking and financial businesses. (0 M|ITRBEZER -
These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made on the IS E DI B R R BEATEIRICAE D
basis of adjusted segment operating results. FCEEEED -
2018 —B-N\F
Banking
Watches and Property and financial
timepieces  investments businesses  Unallocated Total
BEK |ITR
R Em MERE CREL KA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FTER FET FERT FET
Segment revenue: STEWRA
Net interest income from banking RITEB 2 FSWA
business HEE - - 180,831 - 180,831
Net service fees and commission RITEBZREE R
income from banking business BeWAFE - - 236,361 - 236,361
Trading income from banking business $B77%#% 2 < U A - - 63,172 - 63,172
Service fees and commission income & B 2 RIEE I
from financial business UEEAON - - 3,342 - 3,342
Interest income from financial business < &l 5 7% 2 FI| B LA - - 193 - 193
Sales of goods from non-bankingand  3ESR1T R & RLEH 2
financial businesses EmEERA 2,444,364 - - - 2,444,364
Rental income from non-banking and ~ FFSR7T R & RLE 2
financial businesses HEWA - 9,586 - - 9,586
Total revenue A 2,444,364 9,586 483,899 - 2,937,849
Segment results DEEE 258,131 3,314 164,657 - 426,102
Unallocated corporate income and AAMRABRART
expenses, net HEE - - - (18,871) (18,871)
Share of loss of joint ventures [ElE & &R EEE - - - (2,678) (2,678)
Share of profit of associates FEE 5 & A ELR T - - - 8,387 8,387
Finance costs BBER (14,786) - (131) (50,911) (65,828)
Profit before income tax BRETIS T AT R T 243,345 3,314 164,526 (64,073) 347,112
Income tax expense FriSHiA % (77,728) (414) (27,868) 346 (105,664)

Profit for the year RE A 165,617 2,900 136,658 (63,727) 241,448
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER(E)
2018 (Continued) —E-NF(#E)
Banking
Watches and Property and financial
timepieces  investments businesses  Unallocated Total
BEHRKR RITR
FaTE M MERE SR RAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTERx TEL FER TET
Segment assets TREE 5,191,326 179,523 13,957,275 - 19,328,124
Unallocated corporate assets: RAOBARIEE
~ Interests in associates — P B E AR =R - - - 102,919 102,919
~ Interests in joint ventures —Fhee b EER - - - 2,439 2,439
— Financial assets at fair value through — IR 22 (BT A Al
other comprehensive income ZEHRAZSR
BE - - - 621,489 621,489
— Trading portfolio investments - RHEEHRE - - - 48,945 48,945
— Cash and deposits —-Re RiFH - - - 48,286 48,286
— Other unallocated corporate assets ~ —EH AR DAL A 71 & E - - - 106,027 106,027
Consolidated total assets REHEE 5,191,326 179,523 13,957,275 930,105 20,258,229
Segment liabilities SEEE 1,078,126 25343 12,723,651 - 13,827,120
Unallocated corporate liabilities: AAOEEARIALE
— Corporate bonds —RNAEEH - - - 760,244 760,244
~ Borrowings —BE - - - 738,299 738,299
~ Due to a shareholder — N —RRRZ FIE - - - 73,000 73,000
— Other unallocated corporate —HEtnRABERAFAE
liabilities - - - 50,075 50,075
Consolidated total liabilities FERAE 1,078,126 25343 12,723,651 1,621,618 15,448,738
Other segment information Hitvp BER
Interest income and other interest B R E A 8
income WA 3,910 2 231 1,505 5,648
Expected credit losses on trade EWEREREERE
receivables 4,381 - - - 4,381
Expected credit losses on due from  JEULERT KR B P 50E
banks and customers BHEEEE - - 3,256 - 3,256
Reversal of provision for litigation risks 18 [2] 37 72 1 ¢ - - 320 - 320
Provision for inventories FEERE 11,050 - - - 11,050
Reversal of provision for inventories (@17 & 4% 7,301 = = = 7,301
Depreciation and amortisation WER#H 111,521 - 15,597 1,795 128,913
Additions to non-current assets NEFERDEE 150,480 - 43,566 100 194,146
Net deficit on revaluation of REMEEH 2 B4

investment properties FE = 4,066 = = 4,066
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. PEER(E)
2017 —E—+F
Banking
Watches and Property  and financial
timepieces investments businesses Unallocated Total
ER N RIT R
AT EE fm ES g SREK KO BL mEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT FAT FAT FHET
Segment revenue: DEWA
Net interest income from banking RITEB 2 FIEHAFEEE
business - - 94,992 - 94,992
Net service fees and commission BITEBZRBEE LA
income from banking business WA EEE - - 212,616 - 212,616
Trading income from banking business $R77 %7 2 < U A - - 65,227 65,227
Service fees and commission income £ EIEK ZREE R
from financial business HelA - - 9,307 - 9,307
Interest income from financial business 4 &l 3 7% 2 | 2 Ut A - - 128 - 128
Sales of goods from non-bankingand ~ JFER7T R EIE K 2
financial businesses EmHERA 2,583,495 - - - 2,583,495
Rental income from non-banking and ~ FFIR7T R & RLE 2
financial businesses HaWA - 16,936 - - 16,936
Total revenue “u A 2,583,495 16,936 382,270 - 2,982,701
Segment results DEEE 70,732 24,420 156,527 - 251,679
Unallocated corporate income and AWM RABRAR
expenses, net R - - - (152,179) (152,179)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBEAR .z WE 28,247 1,353,795 - - 1,382,042
Share of loss of joint ventures EiEaEtEEE - - - (1,159) (1,159)
Share of profit of associates FEG 5 & A BLR T - - - 20,711 20,711
Finance costs HBER (14,180) - (200) (53,950) (68,330)
Profit before income tax B BT 45 354 Al ) 84,799 1,378,215 156,327 (186,577) 1,432,764
Income tax expense FTefMmx (70,628) (132,738) (18,675) 475 (221,566)

Profit for the year RE 2 A 14,171 1,245,477 137,652 (186,102) 1,211,198
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6. DEEHRE)
—E—+E(E)

Banking
Watches and Property  and financial
timepieces investments businesses Unallocated Total
R AT R
K EtEEm MERE T RIETS Rnld st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHT FHT
Segment assets TREE 4,609,858 125,817 15,880,189 - 20,615,864
Unallocated corporate assets: ROBRRIEE
~ Interests in associates —FTihEE AR =R - - - 99,648 99,648
~ Interests in joint ventures —“FheERERR - - - 5,117 5,117
— Available-for-sale financial assets ~ — At HESBEE - - - 249,796 249,796
— Trading portfolio investments —RPEREE - - - 495,751 495,751
— Cash and deposits —-Be RIFN - - - 247,488 247,488
— Other unallocated corporate assets ~ — E MRk D E A A EE - - - 142,007 142,007
Consolidated total assets GEREE 4,609,858 125817 15,880,189 1,239,807 21,855,671
Segment liabilities SEEE 661,219 26,739 14,574,259 - 15262217
Unallocated corporate liabilities: ADEEARIALE
— Corporate bonds - RAEH - - - 732,978 732,978
— Borrowings —EE - - - 583,269 583,269
— Other unallocated corporate —Htt RABRAAE
liabilities - - - 129,081 129,081
Consolidated total liabilities GeREaRE 661,219 26,739 14,574,259 1445328 16,707,545
Other segment information Hitp EEH
Interest income and other interest FLS YA R E At B A
income 5,571 172 16 3,964 9,723
Impairment losses on trade receivables & BR SR B E5 1B 8,110 - - - 8,110
Reversal of impairment due from banks %l EWERIT R B FEE
and customers credit risks [ B Rt (& - - 96 - 9%
Provision for litigation risks BN C e - - 158 - 158
Provision for inventories FERE 43,258 - - 5,125 48,383
Depreciation and amortisation WER#H 104,655 2,231 10,401 5,510 122,797
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE 162,322 - 9,109 38,067 209,498
Net surplus on revaluation of REMEEHRRTHE
investment properties - 17,605 - - 17,605
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly comprised dividend income
from trading portfolio investment and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, gain or loss on fair value changes in trading portfolio
investments, gain or loss on fair value changes in the derivative financial assets,
impairment of yacht and other corporate income and expenses of the Group's
headquarter which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment. Other corporate expenses mainly included employee costs,
directors’ remuneration and office rental expenses for administrative purpose.

The Group's revenues from external customers and its non-current assets (other
than financial assets and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

DEER (B)
ADBEARBARTHEZBRERERFHE
BRERRAFEFARMBEEBAZ 2R
BEZBRBRA RHHEARENFER
ZWaEsEE TTEEMEEATEES
Yeas sk E518 - IERERE MBI T B RENME
LD BERRE 2 AREBLEM AR
WARSH - Bt AR F 2 BEREK
iﬁ%%%%&%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%@iﬂ%

AREBRAIAZPLZBANGERBEE
(EREELELERAEERIN) A TR

o

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

REIREFKA ERBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F —E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FE& T F&7T
Hong Kong BB 142,281 129,046 177,912 157,023
PRC s 1,818,464 2,070,853 1,397,045 1,423,641
Switzerland s+t 22,942 21,201 460,505 204,097
United Kingdom ks 103,060 101,265 7,928 12,102
Liechtenstein I G 480,364 372,835 448,423 444,970
Others Hib 370,738 287,501 2,492 2,214
2,937,849 2,982,701 2,494,305 2,244,047

The geographical location of revenue is based on the location of customers. For
goodwill and intangible assets, the geographical location is based on the areas of
operation of CGUs. The geographical location of other non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets.

The Group has a large number of customers and there is no significant revenue that
is more than 10% of the Group's revenue derived from specific external customers
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

7. REVENUE 7.

The Group is principally engaging in manufacturing and distribution of watches and
timepieces, property investments and banking and financial businesses.

For banking and financial businesses, revenue mainly comprises net interest
income, net service fees and commission income and net trading income (notes
7(a), 7(b), 7(c) and 7(d)). For non-banking and financial businesses, revenue mainly
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold and rental income received and
receivables (note 7(e)).

WA DA P P s B B2 o P8 S BT
BENBRELBUKEMEAEE: K
tIERB B EM R IA R EBRAEI AL

ARBEFRS HE-FT—/\FR_T
—tF T A= —BILFE  BEREAR
BREIREF (AR ERARE10% 2 E
KU

WA
AEEFERNEEERRFAERRERD
o MEREARBRITRERER

RBTRERMEBMS - WAZZBENE
WAFEE REELASWAFEUARR S
WA FEEE (BF5E7@) ~ 7(b) ~ 7(0) 2 7(d)) ° Bt
JERITRERMERME  WAFTBEELRE
&'u?%%‘%?%‘ﬁ%&ﬁ%&@”ﬂ*ﬂ@%)\(WEI
7(e)) °
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7. REVENUE (Continued) 7. WA (&)
Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FRNERZWALT
(@) Net interest income from banking business (a) MITEBZFNEWRANFEE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
THET
Interest income from banking business THEEMEE ZRITEHZ
arising from: FEWA :
Interest income — due from banks B A — FEYER 1T 5B 161,518 85,006
Interest income — due from clients B A — FEME P RIE 29,512 23,405
Interest income from trading portfolio investments RS HEERENEWA 72 155
Interest income from mortgage loans RIB\ERZMEWA 8,026 3,751
Interest income from available-for-sale AfEESREE 2 MERA
financial assets - 1,945
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments REIRKRENFEBA - 5,551
Interest income from money market papers BEMISEEZMEBA 8,827 1,792
Interest income from financial assets B EEEZ N EWA 12,973 -
Negative interest income/(expense) on due to clients EREPHRIBEZARNE
WA (Fx) 720 (1,001)
221,648 120,604
Interest expenses from banking business THSEMEE ZRITEHRZ
arising from: FERX:
Interest expense on due to banks JEMTSRITRIB Z B S F X (38,403) (20,620)
Interest expense on due to clients EREPHRIBZAERX (564) (946)
Interest expense for issued debt instruments ERTEKIAZFERX (1,645) (3,606)
Negative interest income on due from banks and clients JEUIRTT R EF B Z B F &
WA (205) (440)
(40,817) (25,612)
Net interest income from banking business BITEB 2T ERAFRE 180,831 94,992
(b) Net service fees and commission income from banking business (b) BITEBZREERFBESUANTFE
2018
—E-NE —ZT—+LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAET
Service fees and commission income from THSEMEE ZRITEHRZ
banking business arising from: BREERAEKA :
Commission income from loans EFmERASKA 4,049 2,743
Brokerage fees R 37,107 47,871
Custody account fees AEERFPE 27,368 27,281
Commission on investment advice and asset management ¥ & EZZE M EEERAS 105,612 93,665
Commission income from service fees R &M el A 92,890 78,710
Commission income from fiduciary fees (R LA ON 554 528
Commission income from retrocession #HoRARKBA 4,385 3,954
Other commission income E A A 53,649 52,289
325,614 307,041
Service fees and commission expenses from RTEB REERASHAXS
banking business (89,253) (94,425)
Net service fees and commission income BITEBZRBEERAESRA

from banking business T 236,361 212,616
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(c) Trading income from banking business
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LONE)
(0 BRITEBZXIHRA

2018 2017

—E-NFE —ZT—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAETT

Debt instruments BT E (815) 598
Securities ol 5 298
Forex and precious metals GNEE K B 5 B 62,715 63,868
Funds He 1,267 463
Trading income from banking business RITEB 2 RXHWA 63,172 65,227

(d) Revenue from financial business

(d) ZEEBZZWA

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
TR

2017
—EF—+F
HK$'000
FHBIT

Service fees and commission income % E XA U A 3,342 9,307

Interest income FEHA 193 128

Revenue from financial business SRER WA 3,535 9,435
(e) Revenue from non-banking and financial businesses (&) BMITREMEK WA

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
TRET

Sales of goods BEmiHE 2,444,364 2,583,495
Rental income WA 9,586 16,936
Revenue from non-banking and financial businesses JEMITREREL 2 HA 2,453,950 2,600,431
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET GAINS OR LOSSES 8. HthWARHEMUFENEIRFE
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABIT
Gain/(loss) on fair value changes in trading portfolio REGBEREN R EE
investments, net W/ (B1E) F8 15,541 (5,949)
Loss on fair value changes in derivative financial instruments, £T4 &8 T A7 A F(EEZH)
net EE 5 = (n
Fair value loss on early redemption of the convertible bond REEBEOAIMERES 2 ATE
&8 (978) -
Net (deficit)/surplus on revaluation of investment properties ~ & EEH 2 (E4t) B
EER (4,066) 17,605
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 12) HEWB AT 2 Wz (MaE12) = 1,382,042
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE BERREZ
(B18) Mz (1,589) 1,7
Bank and other interest income from FERITEB < RITREMF L
non-banking business WA 5,648 9,723
Dividend income from trading portfolio investments RS HEERENRSWA 1,097 1,406
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAHEMEEEKAZ
through other comprehensive income PREEZKREKA 11,316 -
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets AfEESREE 2 KREKA - 3,436
Sales of scrap materials RERL & 161 217
Other operating income Efh g A 8,281 4,453
Government subsidies (note (a)) BB 4 (5 (a) 40,701 26,672
Impairment loss on intangible assets (note 32) B EERERE (MiE32) = (123,378)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 33) 2R E &8 (FTFE33) = (19,000)
Reversal of provision/(provisions) for litigation risks AR OB, (BE) 320 (158)
Expected credit losses on due from banks and clients JEWSRIT R TP RIBTEHREE
&8 (3,256) -
Reversal of impairment due from banks and customers BEEYIRITREPEE
credit risks B R (B - 9%
Other sundry income, net H it MBI A F 58 6,310 1,527
79,486 1,300,392
Note: f3E -
(@)  Government subsidies mainly comprised of unconditional subsidies received for (a) BT EFEEWEGGFHMEALEE
subsidising the Group's business. Xz -
9. FINANCE COSTS FROM NON-BANKING BUSINESS 9. FMITEBUBER
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Interest charged on corporate bonds and convertible bond RAEF R ATMRRES TSR 34,454 30,534
Interest charged on bank borrowings, bank overdrafts WITEE  RITEZRHMEE
and other borrowings BB 29,510 37,719
Margin loan interests RBEEHRFE 1,864 200

65,828 68,453
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10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRATSBLATE R
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRATEBATEFE MG (GFA) T3 &A%
ER
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cost of inventories recognised as expense, including: BRARAXNEFEERE 815 1,022,568 1,226,494
— Reversal of provision for inventories — RO EREE (7,301) -
— Provision for inventories —FERE 11,050 48,383
Depreciation and amortisation e I 8 128,913 122,797
— Depreciation (note (a)) — 47 & (M3 (a) 126,255 119,767
— Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (note (b)) —JEfT T AR E R 8 (M () 864 1,219
— Amortisation of intangible assets (note (b)) — | EEHHE (b)) 1,794 1,811
Lease payments under operating leases in respect of: LTRERERT 2 HEKIE
— Land and buildings — T REF 54,333 56,964
— Plant and machinery — = R - 1,400
Auditor's remuneration ZEREN & 4,600 4,300
Gross rental income HeWw AL (9,586) (16,936)
Less: direct operating expenses W BEEEERY 2,309 3,970
Net rental income MW AN FEE (7,277) (12,966)
Research and development expenses (note (b)) B 9t Ko B B B S (M5 (b)) 55,267 54,317
Impairment losses on trade receivables JE W R OB (E 5 18 - 8,110
Expected credit losses on trade receivables FEW R R FE BB = B 518 4,381 -
Notes: B 5
(a)  Depreciation expense of HK$19,653,000 (2017: HK$15,082,000) has been included (@) HTE K H19,653,00008 7 (ZF —+F -
in cost of sales from non-banking and financial businesses, HK$53,213,000 (2017: 15,082,000 7 7E) Bt AERITREBER
HK$50,159,000) in selling and distribution expenses and HK$53,389,000 (2017: Zfﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁ 53,213,000 7 (= F — 4 -
HK$54,526,000) in administrative expenses. 50,159,000/ 7T) st ASHE R DB AU K

53,389,000 7T (=& — 4 : 54,526,000/8
TORTAITHER -

(b)  Amortisation expenses and research and development expenses had been included in (b) HHEFALZARAREABERAZDFAITEE
the administrative expenses. A e
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, Hong Kong profit tax has been
provided for certain subsidiaries within the Group and is calculated at 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits. The subsidiaries established in
the PRC are subject to income taxes at tax rates ranging between 15% and 25%
(2017: 15% and 25%). Overseas tax is calculated at the rates applicable in the
respective jurisdictions.

1. Fi8HimxX

He—_2— \Fr_Z—+F+-_A=+—
BILFE  AEBEE AETHBEARIES
EREREBE IR ERFEF16.5%
(ZZF—EF :165%) 5 H - RPEREKZZ
ME A RIZBIENF15%ZE25% (- T —+ 4
15% & 25%) Z TS TR R GH - /BINRIEIZAE
Arl xR EARERTE -

R B IR E R R B B EL 2 W AR F R 5%
8010% (ZZ —+4F : 5%510%) &3 &

The Group is also subject to PRC withholding tax at the rate of 5% or 10% (2017:
5% or 10%) in respect of its PRC sourced income earned, including rental income
from properties in the PRC, dividend income derived from PRC incorporated BB EHNEEREREMEZESK
company and profit arising from the transfer of equity interest in PRC incorporated A EAEEPREEMAT AR ZREWAR
company. RN M AR R EE 2T o

2018 2017

—E-N\F

HK$'000
TR

—T—tF
HK$'000
T T

Current tax for the year FRENEATIE
Hong Kong EE 665 465
PRC H 78,140 224,845
Liechtenstein EHLE 27,891 19,059
Switzerland st 289 812
Deferred tax for the year (note 42) FNELERIE (MI5E42) (1,321) (23,615)
Total income tax expense Frigfifm sz 4858 105,664 221,566

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

rates:

Bk -

2018
—B-N\F

HK$'000
FTRET

BWERAREAE ZMERA B a2

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

Profit before income tax B B 15 556 Al 347,112 1,432,764
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at the rates R PS80 A& K 2 B 18 (AR 45 A8 A

applicable to the tax jurisdictions concerned M EEAERER CHETE) 90,526 129,637
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAERBRWA 2 R ZE (25,657) (16,727)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR A R B 5,968 46,593
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised FRAARERTIEEE = (26)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBIBB BRI ME T E 34,827 62,089
Total income tax expense FrisfifM sz 4858 105,664 221,566
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12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

12. HEWBE AT

2017
—tF

HK$'000
T

Gain on disposal of Seti Timber Group (note 12.1) HERTAREER 2 WS (HE12.1) 1,353,795
Gain on disposal of Gold Vantage Group (note 12.2) HEeEEE 2 W (HiE12.2) 28,247
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARZWKE (EIB) 1,382,042

12.1 Disposal of Seti Timber Group

In September 2017, the Group has completed the disposal of the entire equity
interest in Seti Timber Group at the total consideration of RMB1,513,515,000
equivalent to HK$1,762,703,000 in which RMB1,400,000,000 (equivalent
HK$1,630,446,000) is cash consideration and the remaining balances
of RMB113,515,000 (equivalent to HK$132,257,000) is the tax paid by
vendor on behalf of the Group. The Group recognised a gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of approximately HK$1,353,795,000. Details of the Group’s gain
on disposal of Seti Timber Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
set out as follows:

121 HERTFTKREEE
RZZE—+tF A KNEENE
THEAE%1m3m5w0mm#
1,762,703,00078 T 5 Ak H & E & C%%
ﬁ%%lz% g E B AR
1,400,000,000 7T (48 & 7 1,630,446,000
BL)BREERE MBETHEHAR
#113,515,000 7 (#8 & 52 132,257,000 %5
L) BBEBFRRAEE L F BB -
AEEBRALENBRRIZWEL A
1,353,795,0001%71 EBEAEEREREHZE
—E—+F+_A=+t—RIEELE
HFoAREEERZFBRYIOT

HK$'000
T

Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE
Cash and deposits e REFR 59,724
Other assets Em&EE 350,815
Prepaid land lease payments (note 31) B E FRIE (FFEE31) 11,977
Income tax payable FERTER1S TR (298)
Other liabilities EmmaE (7,688)
Net assets disposed of HEBEFE 414,530
Non-controlling interests FEEAR (2,670)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal T R R BR SN & 4 (2,952)
408,908
Less: Total consideration o BB (1,762,703)
Gain on disposal of Seti Timber Group HERDTREER 2 W (1,353,795)

HK$'000
T

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHESRAFE
Cash consideration RERE 1,630,446
Less: Cash and deposits disposed of W THE 2R e RIFHK (59,724)
Net cash inflow for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+-A=+—H
IFFE 2R E RN FEE 1,570,722
The cash consideration of RMB1,400,000,000 (equivalent to HE-_ZT—tFT+_A=T—HIEF
HK$1,630,446,000) in respect of disposal of Seti Timber Group has been fully B EHEEERTAREELESR  KAEBE

received by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

FEHUENIR © (B A K #1,400,000,000
7t (A8 & 71,630,446,000 78 7T) ©
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12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12. HEMBAR(E)
12.2 Disposal of Gold Vantage Group 122 HESEKE
In December 2017, the Group has completed the disposal of its 51% equity RZZE—tF+=F - AKEEBRE
interest in Gold Vantage Group to Fair Future Industrial Limited (“Fair 5,100 % 7T 785K H m/\E/\iEEIZ 51%
Future"), the associate company of the Group, at the total consideration of RIETAREEBEARIELEEBRA
HK$5,100 and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of ET (MEeX]) - NEBBERLEE —FHE
approximately HK$28,247,000. Details of the Group's gain on disposal of N B U 3R #928,247,0008 7T - B A S
Gold Vantage Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 were set out as EREzZz—_FT—tF+-_A=1+—H1
follows: FEHESEEBREHBRINNT
HK$'000
FHTT
Net liabilities disposed of: & B EFE
Cash and deposits RE RIFHR 10,346
Trade receivables FEUBR K 13,661
Inventories FE 20,181
Property, plant and equipment (note 29) W% - B R (M3 29) 54,317
Other assets Hitn & & 16,489
Trade payables FEISTBR K (18,532)
Income tax payable FET PR AR (578)
Borrowings =31 (210)
Other liabilities* HBE! (148,874)
Net liabilities disposed of HE B EFE (53,200)
Non-controlling interests FEE R 24,815
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal B AR BRONE [ 18 143
(28,242)
Less: Total consideration B BARE (5)
Gain on disposal of Gold Vantage Group HESEEE 2 W (28,247)
HK$'000
FHETT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEACRESMLFE
Cash consideration ReERE 5
Less: Cash and deposits disposed of BT E RS RFX (10,346)
Net cash outflow for the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=1+—H
IFF 2 2 R & F R (10,341)
The cash consideration of HK$5,100 from disposal of Gold Vantage Group HEZ—+tF+-A=1+—HLHF
has been fully received by the Group during the year ended 31 December = ﬁ%ﬁ HEeEEE  KEBBEEH
2017. YeEE & KB 5,100/8 7T °
# Other liabilities included an amount of HK$22,457,000 due to the Group. This # EmeaEaEENRNERBRX
amount was not settled as at 31 December 2017, and was presented as amounts 22,457,000 7T © Z A IBER T — t¢
due from an associate under other assets in note 34 to the consolidated financial +ZA=+—HIKRERN  BREKAE
statements. B 7% SRR N 5T 3415']7%E1ﬂ3i§§l§\—|?

2 My — ) B i 2 R FROE o
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13. DIVIDENDS
13.1 Dividend attributable to the year

13. BRE
13,1 FREMRE

2018
—B-N\F
HK$'000
Fig
Special dividend of HK5 cents per share for 2017 (note a) — = —+ 45 3 1% B &AL 5781
(MtzEa) - 217,516
Proposed final dividend (note b) FRREAAR S (M 5ED) - 261,019
- 478,535
Notes: (T
(@)  The board of directors resolved to recommend a special dividend of HK5 cents (@) BEFEZREFREE_Z—XRF1+=

per share for the year ended 31 December 2016. The proposed special dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approved by the shareholders in the
2017 annual general meeting held on 26 May 2017 and had been paid to the
Company's shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2017.

At the board meeting held on 29 March 2019, the board of directors do not
recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: recommended final dividend of HK6 cents per share). The proposed
2017 final dividend is subject to shareholders" approval in the forthcoming 2017
annual general meeting and has not been recognised as dividend payable as at
31 December 2017, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits/
share premium for the year ending 31 December 2018.

13.2 Dividend attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year

A=+—BIEFERMNEFRI S SRS
B -RBE-ZT—RNF+-_A=+—
ALFEERRENREERN -2 —+
FRAZFHNBREAZ=ZZ—tFK
HEFRg FERELE  WERE
Z_E—+F+A=+—HILEE
AIAR B PERIRS

RIEBE-NWEFE=ZA-THNALETE
2R L EFETERRNEE
“E-NFF+ZAZ+—HLEFEZ
RERE (ZT—HF : EBEKRHARE
BRE6HB) - R T —EFRHK
BAGFKREAERE T+ FREA
FREMERFTAUEE RZT—+t
FH+-A=+—HUTEERBEMNK
B EBRMAERE T \F+=
B=+—BLEEEZREBHEF,BH
SRIEZ DR

132 FARERI W ZBEMRFERER
g

TN

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
TR

Final dividend in respect of previous financial year
of HK6 cents (2017: nil)

SUBEMBFE 2 RAKE
681 (ZF—t5F: &)

261,113 -

261,113 -

The amount of actual 2017 final dividend paid was HK$261,113,000 as result
of the issue of 1,575,000 new ordinary shares due to exercise of share options
during the year. The aforementioned issuance of ordinary shares were
completed before the closure of members' register on 29 June 2018. As such,
those ordinary shares newly issued were entitled to the 2017 final dividend.

R FEAREBREETSEMmMET
1,575,000 & ¥ & @mA% - M —T—+tF K
B B 2 B R T €58 /4 261,113,000 75
JCe FHlBEITEBRN - —N\F A
—HNABEERERDBFELFER
SR At ZEMBRTEBRRAEERE
K-_ZE—EFRARE -
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BEREF
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of RAAEB ARG ERER REERT TR
the Company are based on the following data: BUATEURFTE -
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company for FTE R EAR RS AR TR
the purpose of calculating basic and diluted earnings ZARREVER ANEERN
per share 201,372 1,170,484
2018 2017
—E-NEFE —ZT—+F
Number Number
of shares of shares
ROEE ek 2d=
‘000 ‘000
TR T A%
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of 5+ & T I E AR B FIF 4R 15 2
calculating basic earnings per share IniE - 5 R 2R 4,351,370 4,350,313
Effect of dilutive potential shares: BERGD 2 EETE
— share options issued by the Company —RAR BT ZRERMNE 2,249 5,752
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of ~ FF & &I B & FIFT I 2
calculating diluted earnings per share HN#E S 15 A% 2R 4,353,619 4,356,065
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 15. EERAMX (BRESHE)
EMOLUMENTS)
15.1 Employee benefit expense 15.1 EEEAEX
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FibTT
Wages and salaries IERF® 669,441 649,300
Pension costs RIS AR 91,286 99,571
760,727 748,871
Employee costs, including directors’ emoluments of HK$83,775,000 (2017: BEKAN (BIEE EH %) 83,775,000
HK$113,680,000) has been included in cost of sales from non-banking and B (ZF —+4F 1 113,680,000,5 7T)
financial businesses, HK$285,027,000 (2017: HK$265,766,000) in selling BEffAFRTEEMER ZHEKX
and distribution expenses and HK$391,925,000 (2017: HK$369,425,000) in 7N - 285,027,000 T (ZF — £ F ¢
administrative expenses. 265,766,000 & 7T) B 5T ASH & K5 i85

¥ A $%391,925,000/8 L (= F — L4 :
369,425,0005 ) EFF AT X ©
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans

15. EERAMX (BRESHE) (&)

15.2 EFER A BAIGE

2018 2017
—B-N\&E —Tt&

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAIT

Net defined benefit obligations TEREE A B TR

83,140 94,323

Net defined benefit liability has been included in “other liabilities” (see note
43) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The defined benefit pension plans are primarily arising from Eterna AG
Uhrenfabrik and its subsidiaries (together the “Eterna Group”), Montres
Corum Sarl and its subsidiaries (together the “Corum Group"”) Bendura Bank
AG and its subsidiaries (the “Bendura Group”), the Ernest Borel Group.
The Group makes contributions to the defined benefit pension plans that
provide post-retirement benefits for employees upon retirement. Under the
schemes, the employees in Switzerland and Liechtenstein are entitled to
retirement benefits based on the plan assets accumulated on attainment of
the retirement age and a fixed annual rate. Since there is potential down-side
risk for the employer to pay additional contributions in case the plan has a
deficit, Swiss and Liechtenstein plans are classified as defined benefit pension
plans.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation on the Eterna Group were carried
out at 31 December 2018 and 2017 by Martin Schnider, a member of the
Swiss Association of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit credit
method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the defined
benefit obligations on the Corum Group were carried out at 31 December
2018 and 2017 by Nicolas Colozier, a member of the Swiss Association of
Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the defined
benefit obligations on the Ernest Borel were carried out at acquisition date
and 31 December 2018 by Swiss Life Pension Services AG, an independent
qualified professional actuary and a member of the Swiss Association of
Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the defined
benefit obligations on the Bendura Group were carried out at 31 December
2018 and 2017 by AXA Pension Solutions AG, a member of Swiss Association
of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit credit method.

ERENEEFRE AR MBARR
“IEMEBEI(RHME)ET -

TE RN & FI5T 2] = Z 2K 5 Eterna AG
Uhrenfabrik & £ BT B A B (G 8 [ G F 2
£E |) - Montres Corum Sarl 2 E i B A
Rl (HEIEsEE])  -ZHiETRNE
RARIREWNBAR ([EHER]) UK
ORI ER - REE R TERKESEF
FFEEREE - Al BN RIREFIZHER
RGBT - IRIEFT 8 I XA L
BRENZEHERNEF - DIREERR
KRERREEFERFAR 2 EEEE
E RN —BFEHEAT  BEEX
REEIMEFR - BEUBEEELRE - 805
TRANTHTEFE DB ATEEKRE
BRIFTE -

MFEEEFEEEZSNMBIBER
B N 5A48 F & T IR 8 JY i I L Swiss
Association of Actuaries 2 —{iZ & & Martin
Schnider R —ZE—\EFER T —+F
T+ A=t+—HERBAEMLARSGE
HETT ©
ERSEBHEEEZETNBILRE
B & E 5 EF & T 5B I I Swiss
Association of Actuaries 2 —fiZ @ & Nicolas
Colozier A —ZFE—N\F R -_ZT—+tF+=
A=+—B{#RAEAEMART E#
1T e

RERTEEEZ MBI BEME
NERBEANETIR—BIYAEER
= K5 B R 3% B £ Swiss Association of
Actuaries 2 & & Swiss Life Pension Services
AGRIWEBRHE —Z—N\F+ A
=+ —B{EREBEM ARG AT

EHWEBFAEEEZETBEYRE
B & JE 58 & F & 1 T i I I Swiss
Association of Actuaries 2 — i & £ AXA
Pension Solutions AG A —ZE— \F K -
—+tF+-_A=+—HBFEBREIEMLA
R EHEIT ©
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued) 15.2 EEERKRESEREE (B)
(a)  The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position (@) FTALZEUBRARARAEBGRE
arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its defined benefit THEEMNFEIETMEE 2
plans is as follows: wm

15. EERAMX (BRESHE) (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F

HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
TAET

Present value of defined benefit obligations EEEMEERE 478,397 456,532
Fair value of plan assets SFEIEE 2 AFE (395,257) (362,209)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligations ~ F 4B S EE L ~ BE/F4E 83,140 94,323

(b)

(0

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations for
both the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

b) BE_ZEZ-—)/\FER_ZT—+tF+=
A=+—HI-MEAFETEREF
SFEIETIREZSHNT

2018 2017
—2-N\f

—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TR

At 1 January n—H—H 456,532 413,556
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries BRBERBRARZAE 14,409 -
Current service costs IR AR 7 Ak AN 29,242 27,883
Past service costs B RFE AR 2,941 1,362
Interest cost F B A 3,085 3,010
Actuarial gains BE U (30,853) (2,657)
Benefits paid SXNEEE (11,059) (7,410)
Contribution by plan participants TR HEEHK 15,547 -
Exchange realignment P 5 2 (1,447) 20,788
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 478,397 456,532

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the years ended

31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

(O BE2_Z—N\EER_ZT—+tF+=
A=+—HIMEFEFEEE
N EZEBINT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F

—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TR

At 1 January n—H—H 362,209 323,926
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries BRBERBRARZAE 9,440 -
Interest income FEHA 64 -
Return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 Bl 4,664 2,403
Actuarial (losses)/gains 1BE (F18) WS (2,492) 10,126
Contributions by the employers 1B =K 19,265 15,902
Contributions by plan participants TR HEEHK 14,929 13,665
Contributions by employees BEHHK 617 -
Benefit paid =ANEER (11,059) (21,075)
Exchange realignment M 5 2 (2,380) 17,262
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 395,257 362,209
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 15. EEGRAMX(BREESHE) (B)
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued) 15.2 EEERAREBRTE (H)
(d)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive d HZEEHEBNFAERGEEEE
income in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows: WARANERZRENT ¢
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Service cost: AR TS B
Current service costs IR 5 AR 7 K AR 29,242 27,883
Past services costs HEREREL T IDN 2,941 1,362
Net interest expense MERZFE 3,021 3,010
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in RNk EEPER T
profit or loss AP 2 A EB 35,204 32,255
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability: ~ E¥751 & F2EE M & EF58
Return on plan assets STEIEE O 4,664 2,403
Actuarial gains BB W= 28,361 12,783
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in B E 2 E U R iR
other comprehensive income JE FE AR M A AR 2 MK ER 33,025 15,186
The defined benefit cost of HK$35,204,000 (2017: HK$32,255,000) JE B8 18 F| K 7% 35,204,000 7% 7T (=
has been included in the administrative expenses. The remeasurement T —+4F : 32,255,000 ) EFFA
of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive THER -EFtEEHBIAE
income. FREFFAREMEEWA o
(e)  The major categories of the fair value of the plan assets at the end of () MIMEHKRHABEELAFEZE
reporting period are as follows: ZRERIAT -
2018
—E2-N\F
HK$'000
THET
Equity instruments fEAT A 59,770 65,841
Debt instruments EBIA 90,284 91,948
Properties VES 77,295 76,937
Commodities instruments EmmIE 4,274 1,937
Assets from reinsurance BHRBREE 144,474 113,858
Hedge funds HrEe 9,117 4,387
Cash Re 8,018 7,301
Other Hfth 2,025 -
395,257 362,209
The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments are PR AR REE T A A EEE
determined based on quoted market prices in active markets whereas BhigzmismEST r M -
the fair value of properties, commodities instruments, assets from AmIE  EFREEERE PR
reinsurance and hedge funds are not based on quoted market prices in AN EVIEIRERMISE 2T

active markets. SMEET -



15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(f)

The principal assumption used for the purpose of the actuarial
valuations was as follows:
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15. EERAMX (BRESHE) (&)

15.2 EREREEFE (E)

(f)

ARBENGEN 2 FEREN
T

Discount rate(s) BhIE &K
Expected rate(s) of salary increase T8 Bi % & FHiE

0.8%—1.0%
0.5%-1.5%

0.6%—-0.7%
1%-1.5%

Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit pension plans

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined
benefit obligations are discount rate and expected salary rate of
increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

° If the discount rate is 50 basis points higher/(lower), the
defined benefit obligation would decrease by HK$35,823,000
(2017: HK$36,316,000)/increase by HK$44,759,000 (2017:
HK$42,118,000).

e If the expected salary rate of increase/(decreases) by 50 basis
points, the defined benefit obligations would increase by
HK$8,435,000 (2017: HK$7,477,000)/decrease by HK$5,086,000
(2017: HK$6,942,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of
the actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present
value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which
is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(9)

TERUR R SRR & 2 GURE D

BETBEBEMNETZEIZRERRK
RAER XN IAHFH SIREL X - T
N2 BREDNIIRE A EM
BREF TR - REMRAESE
BRABRXRAERGEGMERE -

o MMBRELEF(TER)S0
BEZE FTEEMNI TR
41>35,823,000/8 70 (=T —+
F : 36,316,000,5 7T) 4 N
44,759,000 78 T (—F—+t4F ¢
42,118,000 7T) ©

o (HIBHAIFF SILIE L RIE AN
R 2>) S0MEZ 2 F5E4E A
& {E 1514 /18,435,000 7% 7T (—
T — 4 :7,477,00057T)
J3,75,086,0008 7L (—ZF—+
£ 1 6,942,000787T) °

LB RRE AT AT R AR E
%E?E%IJTEZETE’%ﬁ{K - RRASE
TERER AT BE L BRI - AR 2 &
ﬂ:TKTa“’“ﬁHﬂfﬁ

SEAN - Bt IR ERRE DT 2 251
REERRERRNEEZRE
EATRR B AR EAE AN
AR & B IR 0 3 T i 58 T R
wBHEE 2 EMERERR -

B 1L A A B U 9 17 2
FER BRI mE
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16. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 16. EEMERSREEENS
EMOLUMENTS
16.1 Directors’ emoluments 16.1 EEM <
Details of emoluments of the directors of the Company in connection with the BRABBEARRIREMBARERE A
management of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries are set out below: NAEEME 2 FHESHINAT -
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’  and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
&2 BHhKEFE
EEHE REYEAN e st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
THEx THET THET THET
2018 ZE-N\F
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung B EE L - 2,091 18 2,109
Mr. Shang Jianguang AR A - 13,722 83 13,805
Mr. Shi Tao* AR = 1,810 18 1,828
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR EE - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Bi Bo BREH - 1,456 18 1,474
Ms. Sit Lai Hei EERRE Lt - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Hon Hau Wong BEREA - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Tao Li" PESZSE A" - 141 2 143
Mr. Teguh Halim ** Teguh Halim 7% & ** - 2,964 21 2,985
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa HFELEE 200 - - 200
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael EB{Z & 18+ 150 - - 150
Mr. Zhang Bin SR 5 A 150 - - 150
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher #  Rudolf Heinrich Escher

s A A 200 — — 200
700 26,474 214 27,388




16. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
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EEMERSREEREME (B)

16.1 EEM < (8)

Salaries,
allowances

Contributions

Directors’ and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
Fe o 2B RATEE
EFx0T NMEDER HR mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T FHTT FHTT
2017 —E—+tF
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung BB E - 2,222 18 2,240
Mr. Shang Jianguang [EIESie - 12,458 78 12,536
Mr. Shi Tao* AmEE" - 1,560 18 1,578
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR EE - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Bi Bo B EAE - 1,456 18 1,474
Ms. Sit Lai Hei EERRE L - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Hon Hau Wong BEIRTE - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Tao Li* [ Rvab e - 3,016 122 3,138
Independent non-executive BV IEHITES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFERE 200 - - 200
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael BB & {£18 1 150 - - 150
Mr. Li Qiang* T et 8 - - 8
Mr. Zhang Bin SR X, 55 A 150 - - 150
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher4 Rudolf Heinrich Escher 5T 44 190 - - 190
698 25,002 308 26,008
Notes: Bt 5

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remunerations during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

* %

Save as disclosed in the above table, the Group also provided a quarter to the
executive director, Mr. Shi Tao at HK$10,000 monthly rental (2017: HK$10,000).
The carrying amount of the Group's investment property which was rented to
the executive director as quarter as at 31 December 2018 was HK$26,000,000
(2017: HK$25,500,000).

Mr. Tao Li has resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from
23 January 2018.

Mr. Li Qiang had resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 20 January 2017.

Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher had been appointed as an independent non-

executive director of the Company with effect from 20 January 2017.

Mr. Teguh Halim has been appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 23 January 2018.

BT )\F+_A=+—BIFE I
BEERERRENBECAWELH (==
—tF E) e

*

* %

B ERMMBEEIN  NEBIH AT
EELAEALERE—MEBES AH
10,0007 7T (= ZF —+ 4 : 10,000
) cRZE—N\EFE+=—A=+—8"
HAFRTEREBEE 2 AREREME
2 B8R TH & 4 26,000,00005 7T (—Z & —+
£ : 25,500,000 7C) ©

P EEERHEART ZHMITES
BEZZ-N\F-A-t=HREX-

FHAACEIARNBZBYNITE
£ HIE—tEF-AZ+BEBER-

Rudolf Heinrich Escher 7t £ JE Z1E B AR
AEVIERNTEE BT —tF—
AZ+HBER -

Teguh Halim 5 £ B Z X R R B2 #1T
B AT/ \F—A=-+=HE
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16. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.2 Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year included two
(2017: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are reflected in the
analysis presented in note 16.1. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
three (2017: three) non-director, highest paid individuals of the Group for the

16. EEMERSREEZEME (B)

162 EEREME AL
FA AEBRERSHFALTBEIERS
ZE—tF MR)EE HEMeHF
1B BRI FE16.1 FTHI DT « ERNASE
BT =2 (T —+F :=%)IFE=

year are as follows: P ATMEFHELT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEREWEAN 12,294 12,735
Contribution to pension scheme RIRE B 824 1,134
13,118 13,869
The emoluments of non-director highest paid individuals were within HEERSHFALTZHFENTFUTH
following bands: Bl

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

2,500,001 7% 7T Z 3,000,000/ 7T

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—tF
No. of
individuals

N

-

—=

No. of
individuals

AE

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T = 4,000,000 ;5 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T 2 5,000,000 75 7T 2 -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7% 7T £ 5,500,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7% 7T = 6,000,000 7% 7T - 1

3 3

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or the three (2017:
three) highest paid employee(s) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2017: nil).

16.3 Emoluments to members of senior management
The emoluments to members of senior management (excluding the
remunerations to directors which have been disclosed in note 16.1 above)
were within the following bands:

HK$1 to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

17 70 & 1,000,000 78 7T

1,500,001 /%5 7T % 2,000,000 7 7T,
2,000,001 7% 7T Z 2,500,000 % 7T
2,500,001 7% 7T Z 3,000,000 7T

AEBVERNEEFS =R (ZT—+¢

F:ZA)BRaHEEINMESIEAM
AR IIARE B R 2 KB S E AR
BEE(CZ—+F &) o

163 SREEEREMS

SREEEKENNE (TEEENRLX

161 B CEEME) N TUTAR

Bl :

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+tF
No. of
individuals

A

No. of
individuals

A

| = =

N (= | = |
w
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17. CASH AND DEPOSITS 17. BERER

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TR

Cash and bank balances (note (a) and note (b)) R MIRTTaE 8% (B 5E (3) MBI 5E (b)) 395,444 560,329
Cash held on behalf of clients (note (c)) REFPHEEZRS () 46,932 47,251
Sight deposits with central banks (note (d)) R R 1T 2 0% BRAF A (PR (d) 7,259,367 6,813,098
7,701,743 7,420,678
Notes: P&
(@)  Cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates based on the daily bank deposits rates. (a) SFRITBESKREARTEAXRFNERAEZZHF
TR e
(b)  Included in cash and bank balances of the Group are the amount of approximately b)) AEBRESEEBITELRBIEAHRY
HK$249,220,000 (2017: HK$222,403,000) denominated in RMB which are placed with 249,220,000 % 7T (== —4=4F : 222,403,000 /&
the banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. Under the T AAREEEFRP R 2 RITZNE -
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale ARBNMSEBRIRAHME - RIEP
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RARIMNEE IR L AETE - & RNETIER
RMB into foreign currencies through the banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange F o AEEMBBEEEETINEES 2R
business. TARE LR BING o
() In respect of the Group's financial business of securities dealing, the Group (0 MALBEFEFESZEMEBMES  A5H
maintains segregated trusts accounts with authorised financial institutions to hold RERECREERRBE L ETRPUEE
client’s monies. The Group classifies clients” monies under cash and deposits in the BPEHIE - REBERGRE T BRARANEE
consolidated statement of financial position and has recognised the corresponding FPRENEAREREN  UREEARE
balances due to cash and margin clients separately under trade payables (note 36) on FPRIEzZEFABIAKBATHCEEREZHE
the grounds that the Group is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients” monies WmERRENERE TS B RN THEER
and does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those payables with the FPrRekRES 2 BREGEH (F7E36) - B
deposits placed. 7 5= [ 35 5 I 4 A o8 B 1T 2 A R B AR EL AT
EH 2 FRAK A B REMAR -
(d)  These balances with central banks represent sight deposits placed by the Bendura (d) ZERRBITESREEEEMFRZE R
Group and they can be withdrawn immediately without any restrictions. TER - B] B A 2 B A A A n] PR i
(e) As at 31 December 2018, cash and deposits of HK$7,369,156,000 (2017: e RZE—NF+-_A=1+—HH Bk
HK$6,910,905,000) are attributable to banking and financial businesses. 17 77,369,156,0008 ;T (=& — £ F -
6,910,905,000 % 7T ) 32k B 81T R & RE T o
18. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS 18. BWRITREFRE

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
TR

HKS$'000
T

Due from clients — mortgage loans JEW R P RIE—RIBE R 825,042 359,956
Due from clients — other U= P RIE — H At 759,493 654,591

Valuation adjustments for default risk (note (a)) E AR E A (M () (9,097) (3,031)
Total due from clients EWEFREAE 1,575,438 1,011,516
Due from banks on a daily basis FEUERTT B RIA 3,205,104 5,808,499
Due from banks other claims JEUSRITH M R R 185,557 113,571

Valuation adjustments for default risk (note (a)) EH R G ERE (M) (2,825) (192)
Total due from banks FEWER TR IE B 3,387,836 5,921,878
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18. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS (Continued) 18. BWERTREFHE (&)
Notes: B 5
(@)  Movement in the expected credit losses in respect of due from banks and clients are as (a) EUSERITEREFFEZEHEEEHEEHN
follows: e
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RE H2MRER HIRER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHT FAT
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF—-—A—Hz
mER - - 3223 3,223
Implementation of HKFRS 9 BHE BB E R
E I 5,519 - - 5,519
Balance at 1 January 2018, as restated RZZE-—NF—A—RAZ
ek KET 5,519 - 3,223 8,742
Newly formed expected credit losses IGEE(EEER 1,299 - 1,957 3,256
Exchange realignment b 5, 38 B (43) - (33) (76)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZZE-NFE+H
=+ —B &R 6,775 — 5,147 11,922
Origination of new due from net of those settled resulted in an increase in loss RZZ—\F  EEFERFIEREEER
allowance of HK$3,256,000 contributed to the increase in the loss allowance during 8 é@l@ﬁﬁ B3 11 3,256,000 78 7T E B 518
2018: Refsgm
Movement in the valuation adjustments for default risk in respect of due from banks HE-_Z—+tHF+-A=+—BHLFEE
and clients for the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follow: WERTT R EPRIBZ A AR EERAEE S0
™
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2017 W-ZE—tF—F—H 3,033
Newly formed valuation adjustments for default risks IR ARG ERE 264
Utilise of valuation adjustments for default risks BAELHR R G ERAE (157)
Release of valuation adjustments for default risks BoEORRGERR (360)
Exchange realignment [ 5, & 443
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—tF+-A=+—H 3,223
(b)  Impaired amounts due from banks and clients (b) FEUERITRE P RERIE
2018 2017
=E-N\F ===
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Impaired amounts due from banks and clients, gross FEWERTT R B PR E R IE B 5 11,922 3,223
Estimated realisation proceeds from collateral fhEH SR MRS A = -
Impaired amounts due from banks and clients, net FEWERTT R B PR B R IE T R 11,922 3,223
() Non-performing loans (0 TREM
No interest income impact from non-performing loans was recognised for the year HE_Z-\FR-_Z—tF+_A=1+—
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. HIEFE  BEEIATREREEZFIBIK

ApE -
Tz
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19. TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS 19. XBHAERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F

—E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000

RAETH

Equity instruments

FiB Fis

Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong at market value ZHENRES LM ZBRAT A 42,793 556,634

Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong at

BHEREBRII LM ZBRATE

market value 35,429 42,579
Total equity instrument BRAT AL 78,222 599,213
Debt instruments B¥ITA
Debt instruments of financial institutions listed outside ~ & BB F T 2 SR EEE T A

Hong Kong 603 33,878
Unlisted debt instruments of financial institutions TRIBB L IFLEMERLIA 12,890 2,733
Total debt instruments BRITARMAE 13,493 36,611
Investment fund units BREESEN
Investment fund units listed outside Hong Kong REBFIIN T2 IRERE RSN 793 3,228
Unlisted investment fund units FEEMEERESEA 7,851 1,979
Total investment fund units REESENETE 8,644 5,207
Investment in other financial products HitemMERRE 23,247 -
Total trading portfolio investments REEERELE 123,606 641,031

The investments under trade portfolio investments are held for trading purposes.

Fair value of the listed equity instruments, debt instruments and investment
fund units have been determined by reference to their quoted market prices at
the reporting date in an active market. Fair value of the listed trading portfolio
investments is Level 1 recurring fair value measurement.

Fair value of unlisted debt instruments and investment fund units have been
determined using significant inputs, which are market observable, directly or
indirectly. The fair value of the unlisted trading portfolio investments is Level 2
recurring fair value measurement.

Other financial products are referring to the insurance policy entered by the Group.
The fair value of investments in insurance policies are determined based on the
account value as stated in cash surrender value statements issued by insurers. Fair
value of other financial products is Level 2 recurring fair value measurement.

There is no transfer under the fair value hierarchy classification for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

The fair value gain during the year was amounted to HK$15,541,000 (2017: fair
value loss of HK$5,949,000), which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as “other income and other net gains or
losses” (note 8) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, listed equity instruments with an aggregated carrying
amount of HK$35,749,000 (2017: HK$56,366,000) have been pledged to secure the
margin loan payable (note 39).

RHBEREDFBIEEERE -

FARATE BEEIARKREES BN
RNHETESZEE NSRS BEERBT ISR
MERTUEE - LWRXFEGREZRF
BERFE - MEEUELFEFE -

HWERBABE RS BRSE - ABEL
MEBTAMMERESEN 2 A HERERX
REETE - LEMRZFAGKREZATFES
B_REEURTEFE -

Hit S REREAEBRI L 2RE - (RER
B2 RHEDRRREAREL 2HERRE
FIRERESRMET - HEMEMRZ AT
ERF_EBREFUERFEFE-

BE-T/\FR-FtF+-A=1—
ALLFE  BERBEATEBRA B2 EE -

KEE 7 ANFEWZEA15,541,0008 T (==
—+F  RAF{EEES5949,0008T) 2R
BE-_ZT—)\FE+_A=+—BILFEZ#&E
AEEEWARANER S HE KA K E UL
o EFE | (s -

R-ZZE—N\F+-A=+—H8 ©“FEHEAL
35,749,000 7% 7T (=& — 4 : 56,366,000 %
J0) 2 EBRAT ABKIBEREREMRE
S BER(MIFE39) °
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 20. BAFEFAEMEZEBRAZEHEE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018 2017

—E-NFE —ZT—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FAT

Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong (note (a)) A& £ 2 AT A (M5 (a)) (@) 492,759 -
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong REBRIIN LT ZRATA

(note (b)) (MI5E (b)) (b) 128,730 -

Unlisted equity investments ELETMRAKE 5,711 -

627,200 -

Under HKAS 39, equity investments not held for trading were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. These equity investments are classified as at
FVPL under HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible for and designated at FVOCI by the
Group. At 1 January 2018, the group designated its listed equity instruments in or
outside Hong Kong and unlisted equity investments at FVOCI as below, as those
investments are held for strategic purposes.

(@) As at 31 December 2018, the listed equity investments in Hong Kong
represented 14.76% equity interest in Min Xin Holdings Limited (“Min Xin
Shares”). As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 88,150,000 Min Xin
Shares. A dividend income totalling HK$6,996,000 was recognised by the
Group in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Particulars of the listed equity investments at fair value are as follows:

RIEBEFBGFERIEN  WIFFEFEER
ZEAEEDERAHHESREE - RIE
BEMBHMELERNEIR  ZERARER
RNFEF AR HER  BRIFFTEER RS
AEBEREERRFEFALBZEEA R
—F-)\F—-A—8  AEEZ TG
HRNEBBAIEINZ EHBRAREMIEE
MEAREETE REAFEFAEMEER
A RESZERETRRERETH

(a)

Country of Particulars of

RZTE—NE+_A=+—8 RESE
EHZBRAREERAEEEEERA
A2 14.76% B ([BERGKG]) - K=
Z-NFE+-A=+—8 KrEEEE
88,150,000 I {5 /%10 - NEBREZE—
E-N\E+_A=+—HILFEZHEA
2 EWAKERI BUAE ££6,996,000
BT o

BATEIEREZ FTRAREFEN
I

Percentage of

ownership

Number of interest
shares held attributable

incorporation issued shares held by the Group  to the Group

AEE AREBEESG
R EAEEER
HEMMEYER S eBTRAFE ®E Aok

Min Xin Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share

HESEERAR B ERGLE

88,150,000 14.76%



20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

21.

(b)

The listed equity investment at fair value of HK$128,730,000 represented the
investment in Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (referred to “Dartong”
and its shares referred to as the "Dartong Shares”). During the year, Dartong
declared cash dividend of RMB1.2 per 10 shares. A dividend income totalling
HK$4,320,000 was recognised by the Group in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Mr. Shang Jianguang, Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau Wong, the executive
directors of the Company are also the executive directors of Dartong. Dartong
is owned as to approximately 31.99% by Fujian Fengrong Investment
Company Limited (“Fengrong”). Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Ms. Lu Xiaojun are
the daughters-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and the beneficial owners of
Fengrong. Mr. Hon Hau Wong, an executive Director of the Company, is the
spouse of Ms. Lu Xiaojun.

Particulars of the listed equity investments at fair value are as follows:

Country of

incorporation

HEMEYER e RTRAFE
Citychamp Dartong Company Limited PRC Ordinary A Share
T A B ) B R A R [ AR E B

During the year, the decrease in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income of HK$123,352,000 has been dealt with in other
comprehensive income and FVOCI reserve. There is no transfer of cumulative gain
or loss within equity during the year.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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20, MAFEGFARMEEABRAZEREE

21.

(b)

Particulars of issued
shares held

(#8)

s

EAFAEINEZ EFTRAKE
128,730,000 7 JTHE A I A BAR 1D B IR
Aal([RE] - ERmOREAT RER,])
ZIRE -FR KBEERREKREEF0
BARE12T AEEREZE TN
FH+-_A=1+—HIFERZAEZEYK
ARFEZ MBI A A +£4,320,000/8 7T ©

ARRMITESHRILEL BEREL
ITRBERELETBRKBZATES -
REBOREERREERAR (TER])
Fr A #931.99% ° BEZR0R 2 1 Je PR ER 2L
ITHREEELEZAEFRERCE
SEBA - ARBATETRZELL
RIEBBL T 2 RS -

§

T

ATEFIEZ b HRARE FIED

—

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group
REBEL
EEEER
BIH

Number
of shares
held by
the Group

REBPE
ROEE

30,389,058 2.04%

FR-EAFEFAEMEZEARAZEZME
EAFER A 123,352,000/ TEREMEE
WA RIZAFEFAEMEEWARFENE
1B oFR A EE R 2SS -

fTEEMIA

2018
—E-N\F
Notes HK$'000
=z FET
Derivative financial assets MESREE
Convertible bond investment — AR ESFEE —
Conversion option component BREES (@) = n
Forward and option contracts REREES R (b) 7,694 4,609
7,694 4,680
Derivative financial liabilities MESBAE
Forward and option contracts REINHEES Y (b) (20,866) (35,656)
(20,866) (35,656)
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21.

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Convertible bond investment — Conversion option component

The Group has subscribed a convertible bond issued by a company listed in Hong Kong,
which is due on 1 December 2018 and convertible into fully paid ordinary shares with a
par value of HK$0.1 each at an initial conversion price of HK$5, subject to adjustment
on the occurrence of dilutive or concentrative event. The Group can exercise the
conversion at any time until the maturity date and the convertible bond cannot be
redeemed before maturity date (in whole or in part).

The principal amount of the convertible bond was HK$10,000,000, which carries
interest at 8% per annum payable every six months in arrears. There was no disposal
or conversion of the convertible bond during the years ended 31 December 2017. The
convertible bond have been fully redeemed upon the maturity date on 1 December
2018.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, the convertible bond is separated into two
components: the debt component and the conversion option component. The Group
has classified the debt component of the convertible bond as other assets (note 34)
and the conversion option component of the convertible bond as derivative financial
instruments.

The initial value of the debt component is the residual value after separating out the
initial fair value of conversion option component. The initial fair value of conversion
option component is determined by the directors with reference to the valuation
performed by a valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited ("Asset Appraisal”). Subsequent to
initial recognition, the debt component is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and the conversion option component is carried at fair value. The
effective interest rate of the debt component is 29% as at 31 December 2017. The
convertible bond investment has been redeemed by the issuer at the maturity date (i.e.
1 December 2018).

The fair value of the conversion option component at the reporting dates is measured
by the directors with reference to the valuation performed by Asset Appraisal using
Binomial Option Pricing Model with the following key assumptions:

BRERRE B AR A

21.

PTEEmMI A ()
GEE
@ ERBESRA - RRESS

AEBEERB-—HEELTRBRMETZ
HRES AR - \FE+-A—H0F
. ARy ERESETERSERE
BB T ZH R E B - A BEE SR
SREMTURE - AEEAERTTEZE
Bl BEERHARLL - MARERERNE
HAMAAER (2EXED)

Al IR (& 5 2 AN £ 58 /410,000,000 78 7T - Ff
BEFE  BREAERINF EBEZ
T—tF+_A=Z+—HLEFE BELE
REHRABRES - R B N\F+-HA—
BEHA ARREFCEESER -

REREBMBMEEREIWRAT - ATk
BHFDBMALD BN MBS -
AEED BRI BREES ZEBBO N EAR
& EE (FHRE34) - T AIHARR(E 5 2 HA G HE 2B
DRIDERITEESRTA -

B D 2 NI BIERFIRRBIERR D 2 1)
ARFEZHRE - R D 2 Nia A TFE
HERL2EAEMTREEETERREA
BAE ([FRGEE D (FH 2 (S ERETE - 956
HERRR - BERSERD fE FA BE R A ROR R K
ADNER - MR ER D AR A FED R - 10
—EAFF AT B EBHOZE
BRI £529% o AJ IR EHIRAE DN EIH B
(A —Z-NF+-A—B)BBETAER -

RiERBRERD 2 A FEHERLS
EhpEE A - EA R ERAEL 2 H
BERFE  TE/REWOT

At31/1212017
R-F—tF
tT-A=+—H

Stock price BB
Conversion price HinE
Expected volatility T8 BRI 18
Discount rate BE IR &

Risk free rate 40 [ fo Al ==
Expected dividend yield FEHAAR B X
Time to maturity Elp=lisa |

HK$3.08 & 7T
HK$5.00 7% 7T
30.41%
7.63%

1.04%

0.00%

0.92

At 1 January 2018, the convertible bond investment was reclassified to trading
portfolio investments as a whole upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

R-T-N\F—A—B KNFEYBRE
HERIF SRR THMREFRECEEEN
NREXFHEERE -

N

N



21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Convertible bond investment — Conversion option component (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the debt component and conversion option component of the
convertible bond are as follows:
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. ’~_EQHQIE<V/\>

Bzt : ()

(@ FHREEFEE-BREETD (F)
MR ES 2 BB ESS MR D 2 RE
BT :

Conversion Trading
Debt option portfolio
component component investments Total
EXBE BREXDS XBAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHT FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—HA—H 7,098 82 - 7,180
Interest received 2 Hﬁl A (800) - - (800)
Effective interest income R B HﬂU\ 2,123 - - 2,123
Change in the fair value of conversion }‘% Hﬁﬁé Ei /NS R I=E )
option component - (11) - (11)
At 31 December 2017 RoE—+F+-A=+—H 8,421 7 - 8,492
Reclassification upon the adoption of T)T%fm BBV GRS ER
HKFRS 9 FRKREF DA (8,421) 71 8,492 -
Effect of initial application of HKFRS 9 & )& & A3 & /8 B 75 i 5 #E )
FIRTE - - 1,621 1,621
At 1 January 2018, as restated RZZT—-N\F—A—8"
BE5 - - 10,113 10,113
Change in the fair value of convertible 7] #2 % {& 5 1% & #y A F{EE
bond investment - - (113) (113)
Redemption of convertible bond f& [a] AT #2 BR (B 5 - - (10,000 (10,000)
At 31 December 2018 WZZT—\F+=-_A=+—H - - - -

The convertible bond investment has been redeemed by the issuer at the maturity date.

The fair value loss of the convertible bond investment for the year ended 31 December
2018 was amounted to HK$113,000, which has been recognised as “other income and
other net gains or losses” (note 8) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year.

The fair value loss of the conversion option component for the year ended 31 December
2017 was amounted to HK$11,000, which had been recognised as “other income and
other net gains or losses” (note 8) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year.

The fair values of the conversion option component and convertible bond investment
are Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. There is no transfer under the fair value
hierarchy classification for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The key significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value of the conversion
option component are the discount rate and the expected volatility.

A higher in the discount rate would result in an decrease in the fair value of the
conversion option component, and vice versa.

A higher in the expected volatility would result in an increase in the fair value of the
conversion option component, and vice versa.

AT ESFREDHBETARIHAED
HE_ZT-\F+A=+—HIEFEZA
BB E R R FERTE A 113,000/87T -
HERAFEFSEZEARARTHERRIHE
@H&)\&ﬁ@ﬂ&miéﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ iE8) ©

BE—ZF tiJr A=t—RLFEz#H
il D 2 A EEER11,0008 7T - A
BAKEE FEEEBARTER R EMYK

AR E ek B RFE | (HEE8) -

HMIRKER D RATM R E AR EN AT ERE
RSB HEATEFE - BE_T—\FR
—E+E+-A=+—HIFEE 2
BRSBIETHESY -

i
ERRBHA AT EBEATATRE
AT

BEIRE B BB R D 2 X FER D -
[ Z IR -

TEHAR IR £ A A S EUR R
N RZINR e

FEE
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Forward and option contracts arising in banking business

The Group's subsidiaries under the banking business segment act as an intermediary
to offer derivative products including interest rate and currency forwards and swap to
its customers. These derivative positions are managed through entering back-to-back
deals with external parties to ensure the remaining exposures are within acceptable
risk levels.

The following tables and notes provide an analysis of the nominal amounts of
derivatives and the corresponding fair values as at the year ended date. The nominal
amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of transactions outstanding as at the
reporting date; they do not represent amounts at risk.

BRERRE B AR A

21. fTESRMIA(E)
i« ()

(b)

KERTEH ZEARMEAL

REBRITEBD BT ZMBRBUERT T
MERFRHITETEER  BENEUAKL
EREHLEY - ZETETARR VAL
HEONRATRI B HE R HETE IR URR
BT R A S AR

TREMEABEZRLEFEZITETAE
BERERATFERHEON -ITETAZEHE
BTRRBEEARARTRZREMALE2H
Ve 2 B

31 December 2018
—ZEZ-N\FE+=-A=+—H

Nominal

Liabilities
=L
HK$'000
FET

Assets
BE
HK$'000
TFHET

amount
H{E
HK$'000
THERT

Non-hedging instruments FEERT A

— Currency derivatives —BEBIETAR 2,151,141 7,480 (20,652)

— Option —HiRg 23,839 214 (214)
2,174,980 7,694 (20,866)

31 December 2017
—E—+HF+-fF=+—8H
Nominal
amount
[EEE)
HK$'000
FHET

Assets Liabilities
BE af&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Non-hedging instruments FEERT A

— Currency derivatives —BEBTETAR 3,093,502 4,609 (35,656)

— Option —Hi%E 9,027 -* —*
3,102,529 4,609 (35,656)

*

Represents the amount less than HK$1,000.

Nominal amount analysed by remaining maturity

¥ REEEEEANM,0008 T o
WA TEH RS ZEE

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—T—tF
HK$°000
FET

HK$°000
TR

Within 3 months 3@ A A 1,753,659 3,076,434
Between 3 months and 1 year 3EAZEF 416,090 19,678
Between 1 year and 5 years 16255 5,231 6,417

2,174,980 3,102,529

The remaining term to maturity of derivatives does not represent the Group's intended
holding period. Change in the fair value of forward and option contracts arising in
banking business has been recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income under “Trading income from banking business”.

PTAETEZMABR TR IRERAEEZ
BISAH RERTEBZEZHLHEALH
ZATERSHERBIRITEB 2R Z KA
RREZERARNER



22. TRADE RECEIVABLES
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22. FEWHRFR

Trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces

fgfﬁ&%.ﬁr?ﬁ%ﬁ%%iZﬁ@ﬂ&Eﬁ%ﬁ :

business: (note (a)) (P43 (a)
Trade receivables & HKBE/TA 613,650 554,036
Less: Provision for impairment loss WO E B S (50,976) (53,056)
562,674 500,980
Trade receivables arising from financial business: DRI EE 2 EWERK -
(note (b)) (M47E (b))
— Margin clients —REBEEEP 260 531
— Cash clients *iﬁ/i\g}i 8,490 3,197
— Clearing house —HEEFT - 1,579
8,750 5,307
Trade receivables, net JE 2 B K% RE 571,424 506,287

(a)

The Group's trading terms with its customers of watches and timepieces
business are mainly on credit, except for certain customers, where payment
in advance is required. The credit period is generally for a period of one to
six months (2017: one to six months) for major customers. The credit term
for customers is determined by the management according to industry
practice together with consideration of their creditability. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a
wide range of customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables arising from watches and
timepieces business are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

Movements in the expected credit losses of trade receivables arising from
watches and timepieces business are as follows:

(a)

BAETEFPEBLEMARIN  AEBEE
BERENTERESERFII Y ZEER
REBAREARN ETERF—RAJE
—EZXREA(ZZE—+tF: —Z=XEAR)
ZEEH -ZERP2EEHREEERE
TEBHVERREFZEEET - 2R
Pl EBERANEBERBKERTOFRKEDT
AREF #HtEsSEEFEERE - &
U BR SR 5T B o

Bk N B ET EE XA A 2 RURER TR
BERLERBERIIR  RIEAEE
(SR [E1 G B & B8 2 A REIE AR R ¢ Rl

@ ELERT R EEE S BRI
FEUTRR AR ~

ik NS E R E £ 2 FRWARRZ
BHEEBREZHNT

At 1 January m—A—H 53,056
Effect on the adoption of HKFRS 9 BB B BmERUNEISR 2 E 1,793
Written-off of provision for impairment loss il S8R (B B 1R R (6,712)
Reversal of expected credit losses EOEREEEE (231)
Expected credit losses for the year FABRMEEERE 4,612
Exchange realignment M 5 2 (1,542)
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 50,976

Movements in the provision for impairment loss of trade receivables arising
from watches and timepieces business are as follows:

BERENTTEREREEZRWERZ
BESERGEZEEHNT

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January —H—H 42,251
Written-off of provision for impairment loss Wfﬁ VEREV SRty (470)
Impairment loss for the year FNREEE 8,110
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 2 3,165
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 53,056
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. As at 31
December 2018, trade receivables of HK$14,639,000 (2017: HK$20,724,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group during
the year (note 39).

Ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces
business as at the reporting date, based on invoice dates, and net of
provisions, is as follows:

BRERRE B AR A

22. FEWERFR (BB)
@ (&)

REBIERZEE BT E T MK
meR—_E—N\F+=-_A=+—8"
14,639,000,8 7T 2 FEWBR B THEIF (=
T —+ 4 :20,724,000787T) © AEARE
BERFERNERFETHE (MIFE39) -

EENETERESELE 2 ERER
(BB ZREZHHNREB ZE
AR NN

2018
—E-N\E

HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
TAET

1 to 3 months 1231@A 401,115 407,744
4 to 6 months 4z 61E A 73,448 44,480
Over 6 months BiE61E A 88,111 48,756

562,674 500,980

Ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces
business as at 31 December 2017, based on due dates and net of provisions,
is as follows:

ik LT EmERES 2 BIRIRR
(B EE) B PAR T —tF
TZA=t—BZKRESTOT

2017

—T—tF

HK$'000

FAET

Neither past due nor impaired 7 4 260 HA SR (E 406,139

Less than 3 months past due BEADR3E A 44,720
More than 3 months but less than 6 months w R A3 E A E N6 (E A

past due 35,008

More than 6 months past due 1 HA KR A 6 d A 15,113

94,841

500,980

As at 31 December 2017, receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom most of them do not have
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience and the available forward-looking information, management
believes that no additional impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable as at 31 December 2017.

The directors of the Company consider that as trade receivables arising from
watches and timepieces business are expected to be recovered within one
year, their fair values are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their inception at the
reporting date.

R-ZE—+F+_A=1+—H &R
HistmEZ B GRERZERFEER
RPN ZERP ROV EE N LEE -

B #8 H18 I SR (E 2 JE W R IR S T
RAEEHEARENKCEZIEFPE
B - IRBBEER KA BATIEIEER
BEERE ANEEERYESAE
£ MEBBEHRN —_T—+tF+_H
=+ —BIERG SR AR E - mBE
Pk F R ERE L BRONBLE RS -

RABEERR NHREH - HREE
Ko B ot EE am A B A 2 FE MR SR TR %
R—FRRE - BB RBEEREERBIA
KRB ARE  MEAFEEERT
BEYEERER -



22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the financial business of
securities dealing is two business days after trade date (“T+2").

Margin loans due from margin clients are current and repayable on demand.
Margin clients are required to pledge securities as collateral to the Group
in order to obtain credit facilities for securities trading. As at 31 December
2018, the total market value of securities pledged as collateral in respect of
the receivables from margin clients are approximately HK$4,026,000 (2017:
HK$6,647,000). Margin loans are interest bearings at fixed rate of 8.25%
per annum. Subject to certain conditions, the Group is allowed to repledge
collateral from margin clients. There was no repledge of collateral from
margin clients as at 31 December 2018. No aging analysis is disclosed for
trade receivables from margin clients. In the opinion of the directors, aging
analysis is not meaningful in view of the business nature of securities dealing.

Trade receivable from cash clients related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Based on the past experience,
current assessment and the available forward-looking information, the
management believes that the impairment allowance is insignificant in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

Trade receivables from clearing house, i.e. Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Limited, is current which represents pending trades arising from the
financial business of securities dealing and are normally due on “T+2" day
in accordance with the requirements of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing
Limited.

The Group has policy for impairment allowance which requires
management'’s judgement and estimation. The directors are in opinion that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables arising
from the financial business of securities dealing as at 31 December 2018.

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
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22. FEEUWBRFR (48)

(b)

BHEEECREBIEERBRIWER
JHEEPR AR SBEMELE XA
([T+2]) »

JEWREFBERPZIREEERBERNE]
BEREREEE REEEFPARE
BHEEHRRTAEER  FAUREEER
GZEEME - R-_T—NEFE+_A
—+—H HERRESEFEREH
EAEHRIBRZESFMELEY A
4,026,000,5 7T (=& —+4F : 6,647,000,5
TC) » RBEEE R THLE E FF K 8.25%
PR EETIRERRT AEEAH
EHRERPZEER - RZZE—N
F+-—A=+—8 BEBRFRES
EEZEMEER AREERE ZE
RBEEEEZEBME RO E
EE O BMUEBRERNREEEFER
ZERER DT ©

BABEPAM RS TP RUERR
AT AR FLER © RIBBELR - R
APih M AT R ATEE AR - BIEEARE
REERBERBLTERX  JIBR
EEEEVEEREH B ERERRA
g -

FEWAEE P (NBABHREEARAT)
BRI EEESEE 22 RER
EEZHRR S B—REBEERS
NEEMARARZHEERT+2] B 2
5 e

AEBERHEREBBRABR - 2K
BREFLAE MG -BEFERR R
—ZE-N\F+ZA=1T—H  BEARE
HEE 2R EM AT E L USRI MET
R ERERS -

23. RBERARIIRZEMEREE

2018
—E-N\EF

HK$'000
FET

HK$'000
T8

Listed debt instruments, at amortised cost EHERT R R8T ER 1,034,773 -

Issued by: AN A 81T

Governments and public sector Y EPNNE 1 7,822 -

Financial institutions SRS 716,747 -

Corporations 2 310,204 -
1,034,773 -

The listed debt investments represented the investments in listed debt instruments
mainly issued by financial institutions and corporations in Europe.

EHEHREEEIZHENEREERER
B2 LEMEBTARE -
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 24, HHEESRMEE

2017

HK$'000
Fi T

Listed equity investments at fair value (note (a)) FHRAERE - AT ESER (K5 @) 237,959
Listed debt instruments, at fair value (note (b)) THEBLIE  RAFENER B D) 178,747
Unlisted investment, at fair value FELEWRE  EBERFETEE
— Insurance policy (note (c)) —{RE (X () 5,814
— Financial product investments (note (d)) — S REMRKRE (HEd) 59,825
Unlisted equity investment, at cost ELETRAIRE - LK AT BR
— Others (note (e)) —E b (F7E () 6,023
Total st 488,368
Notes: ff3E -
(@)  As at 31 December 2017, the listed equity investments represented 2.04% equity @ RZE—+HF+=—A=+—H0 LTRAE

interest or 30,389,058 shares in Dartong. During the year ended 31 December
2017, Dartong declared cash dividend of RMB1 per 10 shares. A dividend income
totaling HK$3,436,000 was recognised by the Group in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The fair value of the listed equity investments held as available-for-sale financial
assets has been determined directly with reference to published price quotation in
active market. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the decrease in fair value of
Dartong Shares of HK$5,099,000 has been dealt with in other comprehensive income
and the investment revaluation reserve.

As disclosed in note 2(a)A(i)(b), the listed equity investments were reclassified from
available-for-sales financial assets to financial assets at FVOCI upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

The listed debt instruments of HK$178,747,000 represented the investment in listed
debt instruments mainly issued by financial institutions and corporations in Europe.

The fair value of the debt instruments held as available-for-sale financial assets has
been determined directly with reference to published price quotation in active market.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the increase in fair value of the debt
instruments of HK$42,000 has been dealt with in other comprehensive income and the
investment revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As disclosed in note 2(a)A(i)(c), the listed debt instruments were reclassified from
available-for-sales financial assets to other financial assets at amortised cost upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the increase in fair value of HK$16,000 had
been dealt with in other comprehensive income and the investment revaluation
reserve. The fair value of investment in insurance policy is determined based on
account value as stated in cash surrender value statement issued by insurer.

As disclosed in note 2(a)A(i)(e), the insurance policy was reclassified from available-
for-sales financial assets to trading portfolio investments upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

(0)

B 45 K38 2.04% % 4E 5% 30,389,058 A A% {7 © &
Z_ET—+E+_A=+—HILFE AB
ERACHEFI0ORARE 1T - AEER
HE - ZT—+HF+-_A=+—RHILEEZL
A 2R ARERIE A S $£3,436,000 5
Tt o

HlEATHREESHEEY FTRAKRE
ZRAFENEBERERT S A ZREM
B BHE-T—+tF+-A=1+—ALHF
& Rk % 2~ FE R 25,099,000 T2
REMEERARBEEESHHBHERRE -

AP EE 2(2)AG) (b) PR ER - SRANE B BT 75 3R
SEAFEIRIE - ETRARES HAHH
ELREEET O RERATFEFAE LR
HERAZEREE -

178,747,000 8L 2 F M EK TAEEFER
BN e RS R DERITY FMEBIAR
ﬁ °

BEANEHECHEERK T A AFE
DEERERMISAHZREMET - RE
E-T+E+-A=+—-HILEE &%
TEZAF(EEMNA2000ETEREE =
—+EFE+-A=+—RHIEEHEMEEKA
MG EEHBENERE -

PN EE 2(a)AG) () PRI EE - RN ET BB T5 1R
EREANFEIRIE - LHEFETAD AR il
EeRMAEEN Y BERBHENATIRZH
hEREE -

HE_Z—+FT_A=+T—HLEFE 2
SF{E 516,000 78 7T B 70 E A 2 A 2 3%
BEHREHANRE REREZQAFEDR
REARHARSRREMTZKE SHEMm
BE -

AP EE 2(a)A)(e) FTHR BR - SRIAE B BT 75 3R

SEAFIFE RECHARBESHE
EEFNRERZEEKRE -



24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

The Group had purchased financial product investments from major banks in the
PRC. These financial product investments are not subject to maturity. The Group is
entitled to require the banks to redeem the investments with the banks at anytime
with immediate effect. The directors of the Company consider that the carrying value of
financial product investments approximates to their fair value at end of the reporting
period.

As disclosed in note 2(a)A(i)(e), the financial product investments was reclassified from
available-for-sales financial assets to trading portfolio investments upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9.

The balance represented 4.95% equity interests in Henan linjue Enterprise Company
Limited which was classified as available-for-sales financial assets and stated at cost as
at 31 December 2017.

As disclosed in note 2(a)A(i)(d), the unlisted equity investments were reclassified from
available-for-sales financial assets to financial assets at FVOCI upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

25. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

26.

ZZT—)\FFH 2018 Annual Report

285

24, IHHESRMEE (B)

i
(d)

(e)

(8

AEERNFEIZRTBECHERKRE
ZECTHERKRELEIHA - AEERER
BRERRITEERITIRE W BN AR - &
RAEERR NBREPR eRERRE
ZHREESEEL N EBEE

AN EE 2(a)A) ) TR ER - SR BRI T5 1R
SEAFIREK  EREMRECHAHH
ETMEEETORERZHAKRE -

R-ZT—+E+-A=+—0 AlkLE
WoBAHNESREE KRR AYIERZ
AEEBEEEMR A A4.95% AERS -

AP EE 22)AG)(d) PTHRER - FRANE BB 75 4R
SHREAFEIRIK - FFLHRARED A4t
HESBREESN D BAERATEAARM
EHMPAZEZRMEE °

25. FEINHRE

HK$'000
TAET

Listed debt instruments, at amortised cost EFHEBT R R EKAYER 1,138,704

Issued by: AT AL 397

Governments and public sector BT R 2 & 2B P 362,084

Financial institutions DRI 475,157

Corporations 2 301,463
1,138,704

Held-to-maturity investments were reclassified to other financial assets at

amortised cost upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

INVENTORIES

26.

ROBEVHREENEIRR - HHEET
MR BB D BERBIHENAI R 2 E S

wE

2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
FER

Raw materials R 584,342 369,402
Work-in-progress E&m 359,015 313,621
Finished goods and merchandises BIAK G N B 1,371,188 1,344,168

2,314,545 2,027,191
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28.

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited T3 iEX AT £ B AR Q7

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 27. i EEEER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT
At 1 January mn—H—H 5117 -
Subscription of the shares of joint ventures R ELEZRD - 6,276
Share of total comprehensive income of joint ventures ~ fE{L & &% 2 2 EURAEEE (2,678) (1,159)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 2,439 5117

Particulars of the joint ventures, which are accounted for using equity method in
the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

Particulars of
issued capital
21T

BRAFE MR

Us$100
1003 7T

Corum Investment Management Limited
("Corum Investment”)

Cayman Islands

HES

US$10,000
10,0005 7T

Cayman Islands

HERE

Corum Capital Partners Limited
("Corum Capital”)

Despite the Group's holding of 40% equity interest in Corum Investment and
Corum Capital respectively, the directors have confirmed that neither the Group nor
other shareholders of the joint ventures has unilateral control over the operating
and financing decision of the joint ventures in accordance with the joint venture
agreement. Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangements are classified as joint
ventures and have been accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using equity method.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Percentage of

28.

AV HREAFEAESREARZAEEDERF
== .
BaAR -

Principal activities and

interest held principal place of operation

BEER
FriEE 2t

2017
—E—+tF

FTEXBREIBEXME

40%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
REBREZK
40% Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBREERK

#E RN E 5 Bl A Corum Investment &
Corum Capital 2 40% [ X # =5 - R IE & &
Z O EEMAMELAEERAECEZHEM
MR AT EE HEIEHI & ¥ 2 EL RIER
KoBBEBYBMELENENSR  ZZE
BT EASELEARGAMIETHRE
HRAEDSEAALR -

Frib B & 1 R &

2018 2017

—E-N\FE —ZT—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHE T

At 1 January n—HA—H 99,648 88,841
Share of total comprehensive income of associates MBS AR 2 2R A LR 8,271 20,807
Dividend income from an associates B2 N A 2 B A (5,000) (10,000)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 102,919 99,648

Particulars of the principal associate, which is a limited liability company, at 31
December 2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation

Particulars of

issued capital

BROREHEE
HK$600,000
600,000 & 7T

A AR 3L 4t B
Hong Kong
B

Fair Future Industrial Limited
("Fair Future”)

EXEXBERAR(EX])

(ZZFE—+F :25%)

Percentage of

R-Z—N\F+-A=+—H TBREA
Al CRARAR) ZH#EMT ;

Principal activities
and Principal

interest held place of operation

A&
FrisE 2t
25%

(2017: 25%)

FTEXBRIBEXME

Manufacturing of watches and
related accessories in the PRC

R B S B R R AR R AC 1
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28. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 28.
The summarised financial information of the Group’s material associate extracted

FribEE AR s (8)
NTRBE-T-N\FER-_F—tF+=A
=+ —HIEFEASBEAEZ QR 2B

from its management accounts for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is

as follows: BREE (s HEEERB) !
2018
—E2E-N\F
HK$'000
FExT
Fair Future #x
As at 31 December R+=—HA=+—8
Current assets MENEE 679,548 646,529
Non-current assets ERBEE 140,252 149,798
Current liabilities mEa & (556,625) (543,665)
Non-current liabilities EREBARE (275) (803)
Net assets EEFE 262,900 251,859
Less: Non-controlling interests o FEFER R R (352) (616)
Net assets attributable to owners of the associate K& N THEEABLEEZE 262,548 251,243
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in TEEREREZES ZHIER
Fair Future:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEEYEF#E 2 LA 25% 25%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEBEEEBE AR ZEEFE 65,725 62,965
Goodwill on acquisition Wi 2 37,987 37,987
Effect of unrealised profits arising from the transactions KB —EBE R GRH 2 A ER
with an associate i M 52 (1,151) (1,595)
Other reconciliation items Ha ¥ ER18 B 208 141
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 102,769 99,498

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2018
—2-N\f

HK$'000
TR

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

Revenue WA 1,223,729 1,186,391
Profit for the year AR R A 31,510 80,038
Other comprehensive income Ha 2w A (468) 385
Total comprehensive income e oL 31,042 80,423
Profit for the year attributable to owners of an associate — fE B ‘& /A R A A JEAE AR F [ )i 7 31,774 80,038
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to ~ — & Bt & 2 1A A JE(G AN FE

owners of an associate ZERALTE 31,306 80,423
Reconciliation to the Group's share of results of TEBRGENEBZHE:

Fair Future:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEE A2 I 25% 25%
Group's share of profits of the associate REEEEEE QR Zm A 7,943 20,009
Effects of unrealised profits arising from the transactions R 5 81— & N RR P 2 K EH

with an associate il 444 702
Share of profit of the associate for the year FE(R S A& R alm T 8,387 20,711
Group's share of other comprehensive income of REERGBE AR ZHM 2 KA

the associate (117) 96
Other Hh 1 -
Share of total comprehensive income of the associate ~ JE{SHf & AR 2 2 FE UL A 4258 8,271 20,807
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29. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRERRE B AR A

29. M¥ - BERRKE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
huildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles
HE %E
1HEET HENEEE HEREE RHENERG RE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 1000
AL AL AL TAL
At 1 January 2017 R=F-t%-B-A
Cost A 443,761 5,904 197,786 349,308 4750 24997 1319278
Accumulated depreciation ZiME (55,179) (33.049) (65.412) (182,896) (34.721) - (371,256)
Net carrying amount BERE 388,582 128% 13,374 166,412 12,801 234997 948,022
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tF
tZB=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEESE 388,582 1285 13,374 16,412 12,801 234997 948,022
Additions e 11,048 36,140 9475 51,851 DAL 60,951 2005
Transfer 2E 246,90 - - - - (246,960) -
Acquisition of subsidiaris (note 51.2) WM B AR (F3E51.2) - 30 - 78 - - 108
Disposal of subsidaries (note 12.2) HERBLR (HiE122) - (5,587) (46,013) (2,488) (229 - (34317)
Depreciation it (19815) (12,867) (20,356) (62,634) (4,095) - (119,767)
Disposal e (5.727) 351) (592) - (636) - (10.466)
Exchange realignment [EA% 28251 11 10258 9,288 564 1133 61,471
Closing carrying amount EREAE 679,299 28,838 85,146 162,507 11,19 60,321 1,021,303
At 31 December 2017 R=E-tF+ZA=1-H
Cost WA 738529 64,140 16,230 116957 16313 60,321 1,492,490
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (39.30) (35,300 (81,084 (254 450) (35121) - (465,187)
Net carrying amount RERE 679,299 28,838 85,146 162,507 1119 60,321 1027303
Year ended 31 December 2018 B2-E-N\F
tZB=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENERTE 679,299 28,838 85,146 162,507 11,192 60,321 1,027,303
Additions hE 28,874 19,916 5,123 51,849 47191 2471 113,030
Transfer B 19,648 - 5 - - (20,387) (687)
Acquistion of subsidiaries (note 51.1) WEmBAR (Britsn) 21,33 3,637 859 6,915 m - 39,116
Depreciation it (33,136) (17.311) (11,512) (61,248) (3,048) - (126,255)
Disposal e (16) (138) (61) (314) (1,060) - (1,589)
Exchange realignment EXAE (8,137) (1,482) (666) (2,485) (576) (836) (14,18)
Closing carrying amount EREAE 713,765 33,460 78,941 157,224 1M 575 1,036,736
At 31 December 2018 R=E-NE+ZA=1-H
Cost A 801,236 85,196 193,058 580,813 48213 41,575 1,750,091
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (87.471) (51,736) (114,117) (423,589) (36,442) - (713,355)
Net carrying amount BERE 713,765 33,460 78,941 157,224 1M 4,575 1,036,736

At 31 December 2018, land and buildings in Switzerland with an aggregated
carrying value of HK$120,711,000 (2017: HK$117,871,000) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 39).

R-ZZE—-N\F+ZA=+—H8 KEEZE
R A B £ BR T 4218 120,711,0008 7T (==
—-4F :117,871,00078 7T ) 2 T MIEF LUE
FIRITREE (MI5E39) ©



30.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position can be summarised as follows:
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30. REYE
K E= B P A ot BRERFE & sl B A8 {E T LAAS
SR EZWERE R DIEAFEEXE
s UWHOBBKARAKEY -

EC,* BN R 25 2 FRE (B2 Bt a0

7|

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—tF
HK$'000
TATT

HK$'000
TR

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZEKmE 125,384 107,779
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ERamE  BWELRERE 57,815 -
Net (deficit)/surplus on revaluation of investment WEMEB Gz (B, BEFHE

properties (4,066) 17,605
Carrying amount at 31 December WNt+—RA=+—HEHEAE 179,133 125,384

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties situated in Hong Kong

AREBMNEERPEAFHRBLOFAEZR

and the PRC held under medium-term leases are analysed as follows: EBWMEZEmMESTWOT :
2018 2017
—EBE-NFE —ZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Hong Kong BB 26,000 25,500
PRC H 153,133 99,884
179,133 125,384

At 31 December 2018, the Group has not obtained the relevant title certificates
for investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$46,340,000
(2017: HK$43,318,000). The Group's legal advisors have confirmed that the Group
is the rightful and equitable owner of these investment properties. The directors
are now in process of obtaining the title certificates from the relevant government
authorities.

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2018 and 2017 by Asset
Appraisal and Chung, Chan & Associate, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$179,133,000 (2017: HK$125,384,000) in aggregate. Asset Appraisal
is a member of Hong Kong Institutes of Surveyors and Chung, Chan & Associates
is a member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Both have appropriate
qualifications and relevant experiences in the location and category of properties
being valued.

RZE—NF+-_A=+—H ~EET
R 3t BE T 4218 46,340,000 8 7T (B —+4F ¢

43,318,000/870) 2 R EMEES B EERE
H o REBARBERMOHER  AEEAZS

REMEZ QA EZHAA - EFHIERA
FARR T B RS SR M A

Txéfi@%ﬁé_z —NEFER-ZT—+F+_-A
ST HEBYERR 1&@%@2&%5&

Chung, Chan & Assouate iﬁﬁ% & $£179,133,000

BT (ZZT — 4+ 1 125,384,000 7T) °
BERABBREANEEHE - Chung, Chan &
Associate 8I| & 5 B ?%H\EUEEW Begs -

MEGREBREYEZLERDE T E AR
EEER MRS -
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30. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is
provided below.

. REWME(E)

DFER G
BREWNERZ A VFER/E ZBREEAFER
B FHRFRAFEGHRZEREIIWT -

2018 2017
B N\FE T+t

HK$’'000 HK$°000
FHET THETT

Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value)

FUER (R

BHIEAFE) 125,384 107,779

Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEEME  WELREE 57,815 -
Net (deficit)/surplus on revaluation of investment MERMKEECREDEEMRZ
properties charge to profit and loss (B4t /B3 (4,066) 17,605
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) FRER(FE=ZELEERFE) 179,133 125,384
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain for the yearincludedin St + = A =+ —BAFEEEETA
profit or loss for assets held at 31 December A EE s FERER
(E18) =g (4,066) 17,605
Change in unrealised gain for the year included in other Ft+—=A=+—BFFEEEEFTA
comprehensive income for assets held at 31 December b & U A 2 4 & K & 38 Y 25
&= 57,128 -

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

For the fair value measurement for investment properties in the PRC under income
approach, the fair value was determined by taking into account the net rental
incomes of the properties derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the tenancies, which are then capitalised
into the values at appropriate capitalisation rates.

Significant unobservable inputs Range
Capitalisation rate 2.0% to 6.50%
(2017: 2.2% t0 6.43%)

HK$6.51 to HK$114.89
(2017: HK$5.16 to HK$99)

Market unit rent per square metre

A lower in the capitalisation rate and a higher in the market unit rent used would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment properties,
and vice versa.

For the fair value measurement for investment property in Hong Kong under direct
comparison method, it is assumed that each of the properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant markets.

REBEZ2-_FZ—N\EFER-_ZE—+F+_-HA
=+ —HUEFE FEHFE_EHITE
HE NEERAF B E - EEE
e AEE B ABREA 2 REBRER
B RFERBNIKFE 2Bz 85 -

IR e EF 2P EKREYE N FE

& RAPENFAZSDERREMEESL

ZHEBWRAFE  WERINEEER 2R

éﬁg CHRREE AN R BT E ARG
BfE-

BERATTER@GAEE &E
BEARE L E 2.0% = 6.50%
—E—+F

2.2% % 6.43%)

BATMSEHES 6518 TLE
(8TFHK) 114.897 7T
—T—tF:

51685 TZE 997 7T)

ERREENMLRERSELMSEE SR
BHFEREMEZ NTEEM  RZIFA °

WRBEEERLEIEZAETEREMERF
EME @ IEREEVEAJRERRRE R
& WBEBEMSAFZALEHERRE -



30. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

31.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison method in valuing the
investment property was the price per square feet and taking into account location
and other individual factors. The price per square feet used is approximately
HK$17,020 (2017: HK$15,199). An increase in the price per square feet would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment property, and
vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior year. The
fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and best use,
which does not differ from their actual use.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
Changes to the carrying amounts are summarised as follows:

30.

31.
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REYE (E)

AFEZR (E)

FHEREMER  BEELUBEBETNEZHA
HEZ—ABFEFRER Bt RMNERE
MEREZ - fTASFE A RERKL A17,020
BT (ZZE—+HF 115198 7T) c FFEAHR
B EASEBEYMEATETEEM
RZ IR ©

RE—FEERZEETELEES - AT
ENRE LA E L & MRERGREE

AHE RERAGRAERARYER -
BATHEERE
FEEEZFHERMT

2018
—E2-N\F

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHET

HK$'000
TR

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEmE 51,083 59,042
Amortisation during the year FREH (864) (1,219)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note12.1) HEREB AR (FTeE12.1) - (11,977)
Exchange realignment M 5 2 (2,614) 5,237
Carrying amount at 31 December WH—_A=+—RAKHEE 47,605 51,083

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of the Group's prepaid land lease payments
expected to be recognised as expense after more than one year is HK$46,775,000
(2017: HK$50,207,000). The remaining prepaid land lease payments are expected
to be recognised as expense within one year.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Group's prepaid land lease payments
are related to land located in the PRC and held under medium-term leases.

NZEBE-N\E+_A=+—0 Kr&EF—%
g IEET B R AE R 2 BN L ER
XA 46,775,000 7 7T, (—ZF —+ 4 : 50,207,000
BIT) c B NN L EFIBTEA S —
FAEREER -

RZE-—N\EFER_FE—tF+_A=+—
B AEE BN HHEEZIE D EA R
R REFREHAFE 2 T ER -
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32. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

3. BILEE

Supplier and
distribution
networks Patents  Trading rights
R R
Vil L EVill: ] RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THT BT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE-t5-A-H
Cost KA 20,417 220,106 30,564 - 271,087
Accumulated amortisation and S BEELRERE
impairment losses (13,603) (102,310) (30,270) - (146,183
Net carrying amount REFE 6,814 117,1% 294 - 124,904
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—tHF+ZA=1t-AHL
EE
Opening carrying amount ENERE 6,814 117,1% 294 - 124,904
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKBAF
(notes 51.2 and 51.3) (FraE51.2%513) - - - 7,246 7,246
Impairment loss for the year (note 8)  ZF AR E A 12 (Ff5E8) - (123,070) (308) - (123378)
Amortisation B (1,672) (74) (65) - (1,811)
Exchange realignment ER AR 43 5,653 79 - 6,175
Closing carrying amount EXRERE 5,585 305 - 7,246 13,136
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tHE+ZA=1+-H
Cost KA 21,857 236,246 32,03 7,246 297,552
Accumulated amortisation and S EERAERR
impairment losses (16,272) (235,941) (32,203) - (284.416)
Net carrying amount BEFE 5,585 305 - 7,246 13,136
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-)N\f
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening carrying amount FOEREE 5,585 305 - 7,246 13,136
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 51.1)  YtBEHI B 22 &l (PEE51.1) - 42,000 - - 42,000
Amortisation B (1,718) (76) - - (1,794)
Exchange realignment B A 68 (100) - - (32
Closing carrying amount EXERE 3,935 42,129 - 7,246 53,310
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1+-H
Cost KA 20,927 271,867 32,203 1,246 332,243
Accumulated amortisation and S EERAERR
impairment losses (16,992) (229,738) (32,203) - (278,933)
Net carrying amount BEFE 3,935 42,129 - 7,246 53,310

As at 31 December 2018, intangible assets of HK$46,064,000 (2017:
HK$5,890,000) are attributable to watches and timepieces business while
intangible assets of HK$7,246,000 (2017: HK$7,246,000) are attributable to
financial business.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$27,011,000 are
attributable to the CGU of Corum Group. The recoverable amount of the CGU of
Corum Group has been determined from value-in-use calculation in which overall
negative cash flow is expected. The recoverable amount of the CGU of Corum
Group as at 31 December 2017 would be nil. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the revenue growth of Corum Group is not achieved as previously
expected and it is uncertain that those intangible assets could generated economic
benefit to Corum Group. As such, an impairment loss on the intangible assets of
HK$27,011,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the directors covering a five-year period, followed by an extrapolation of
expected cash flow at the zero growth rate which do not exceed the long-term
growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates, and a discount rate of
16.95% per annum. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the CGU. No further impairment loss would be provided for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$96,058,000
and intangible assets with definite useful lives amounted to HK$309,000 are
attributable to the CGU of The Dreyfuss Group Limited and its subsidiaries
("Dreyfuss Group”). As the recoverable amount of the CGU of Dreyfuss Group
would be nil, an impairment loss on the intangible assets of HK$96,367,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Details of the impairment assessment of the CGU of
Dreyfuss Group are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. No
further impairment loss would be provided for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$2,850,000 (2017:
HK$2,850,000) and HK$4,396,000 (2017: 4,396,000) are attributable to the CGU
of Shun Heng and Metasequoia Capital respectively. Details of the impairment
assessment of the CGU of Shun Heng and Metasequoia Capital are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

GOODWILL

The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position, arising from business combinations, is as follows:

32.

33.
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